Strategy and Resources Committee
Monday, 11 April 2016
7.30 pm at the



Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Strategy and Resources Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Ruth Dombey
Councillor Simon Wales
David Bartolucci, Richard Broadbent, Richard Clifton, Tim Crowley,
Neil Garratt, Marlene Heron, David Hicks, Jayne McCoy,
Wendy Mathys, Steve Penneck, Marian Radford, Colin Stears and
Jill Whitehead

Substitutes:

Nick Emmerson, Jane Pascoe, Arthur Hookway, Nighat Piracha
and Tony Shields

This is a Council meeting held in public. Additional representations are at the invitation of the Chair
of the Committee. If you are a relevant organisation and you wish to submit representations on a
proposal contained within the reports to this agenda please submit a request via Committee
Services three working days before the meeting date.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
PLEASE NOTE: Any decision taken at this meeting does not become definitive until 10am on the
third working day after the meeting. Any four members of the Council may notify the Chief
Executive by then if they require a decision to be reviewed by the appropriate committee at its next
meeting. Please contact the Committee Services representative shown on the front page for
further information.

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
1 April 2016

Enquiries to: Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support
Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes

1-6

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 8
February 2016.
4.

Any items the Chair deems urgent

5.

Market Development Strategy 2015-20

7 - 48

Setting out the Council's strategy to shape, influence and manage markets for
commissioned services in Sutton.
6.

The Growth Agenda: London, the South London Partnership and the
London Borough of Sutton

49 - 58

The aim of this report is to give members an update on our work as members
of the South London Partnership (SLP); alert them to current and proposed
streams of work; to note the overall direction of the devolution agenda in
South London; and to agree our continued approach to working within the
SLP and how we might prioritise it across the council. In addition, the recent
peer challenge review of the council conducted by the Local Government
Association (LGA) suggested that the council needed to foster a greater
understanding of sub-regional arrangements and priorities amongst
members, and this paper aims to rectify that.
7.

Housing Needs, Homelessness and Support Brokerage Services Local Authority Trading Company ("LATC")

59 - 86

This report sets out proposals for the governance arrangements for the
Council and the LATC and its support service subsidiary and formally
recommends the setting up of the Shareholder Board in the Council’s
constitution.
8.

Admittance of the London Borough of Wandsworth into the Legal
Shared Service

87 - 92

Consideration of the London Borough of Wandsworth joining the South
London Legal Partnership
9.

Use of retained Right to Buy receipts
A report was presented to the Strategy and Resources Committee regarding
new build council housing – proposals for future development on 7 July 2014.
Members authorised officers to take all necessary steps to ensure that reinvestable (net) Right-to-Buy receipts are applied to new build council
housing. This report updates Members on the issues surrounding the spend
of those receipts and makes recommendations for future spend.

93 - 100

10.

Mayoralty Review
Summarising the findings of the Mayoralty Review and proposing some
guidelines for the civic office.

11.

Exclusion of the public and press
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the
committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports
revealing exempt information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraphs 1-7 Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.”

101 122

This page is intentionally left blank

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3
Strategy and Resources Committee
8 February 2016

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
8 February 2016 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

50.

Councillor Ruth Dombey (Chair), Councillor Simon Wales (ViceChair) and Councillors David Bartolucci, Richard Broadbent,
Richard Clifton, Tim Crowley, Neil Garratt, Marlene Heron,
David Hicks, Jayne McCoy, Wendy Mathys, Steve Penneck,
Marian Radford, Colin Stears and Jill Whitehead

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.
51.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.
52.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 14 December were agreed as a correct record
and signed by the chair.
53.

ANY ITEMS THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair advised that a late an urgent item, Petition Cheam Park Stable Block. This
item was accepted as late and urgent as: further delays could affect the project
viability.
54.

PETITION CHEAM PARK STABLE BLOCK

The Chair reminded the committee that the petition had been deferred at the last
meeting pending the outcome of the proposed challenge to the Planning
Committee’s decision to grant planning permission for the development of the Old
Stables at Cheam Park. The Council had received confirmation that the prospective
claimant would not be challenging the decision therefore no judicial review had been
brought.
The Chief Executive advised members of the committee that only matters relating to
the land and the lease were within the remit of the committee.
Ian Berry, lead petitioner, addressed the meeting for 5 minutes, raising the following
key points:







Viability and need for a nursery in the area
Green credentials of the Council, in terms of parking and increased vehicle
movements
Security of the park
Neglect of the building
The level of engagement beyond the statutory process
Covenant and use of the building.
1

Agenda Item 3

Page 2

Strategy and Resources Committee
8 February 2016

Colin Shea, architect for Treetops Nursery, addressed the meeting for 5 minutes,
raising the following points:





The development would bring a building in disrepair back into use
The development would be to a high standard
The nursery would bring jobs into the area
Nurseries operated successfully in other park locations in the borough.

Members discussed the petition and were advised by Officers: that resources were
allocated through the capital programme for managing Council assets; no proposals
to develop the building as a community asset came forward through the marketing
processes; as planning consent had been granted any likely future use for the
building would be a nursery and the nursery would be allowed to lock-up the park
and that this had not been an issue at other parks.
Resolved
That the approach already taken be officers, in terms of leasing of the building, be
endorsed.
55.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT, THIRD PERIOD 2015/16

The committee considered the performance and finance report for quarter three.
Resolved
1. That the performance against Corporate Plan indicators be noted.
2. That the forecast net revenue overspend of £1.5m against an agreed net
revenue budget of £148.4m and actions being taken to bring expenditure
back into line be noted.
3. That the forecast net underspend on the capital programme of £0.2m be
noted.
4. That the proposed amendments to the capital programme summarised in
Appendix B to the report be agreed.
56.
COMMISSIONING AND FINANCIAL PLANNING 2016/17 TO 2018/19
(INCLUDING REVENUE BUDGET)
The Committee considered the report which proposed the Strategic Commissioning
Plan and the Revenue Budget. The Strategic Director, Resources advised members
that the government had announced, that afternoon, additional funding through the
Local Government settlement which include transitional relief for some local
authorities. As a result of this Sutton would receive an additional £1.3 million in
2016/17 and another £1.3 million in 2017/18. The Strategic Director, Resources,
suggested that an additional recommendation be considered by members to reflect
that the impact of this additional funding would need to be considered with final
proposals being put to Council on 7 March.
2

Page 3

Agenda Item 3
Strategy and Resources Committee
8 February 2016

Resolved
That Strategy and Resources Committee agree the following recommendations to
Full Council for consideration at its next meeting on 7 March 2016.
Commissioning intentions
1. That Strategic Commissioning Plan set out at appendix A to the report be
agreed;
Revenue Budget 2016/17
2. That the proposed General Fund net budget requirement of £144.916
summarised at appendix B to the report and by Directorate at appendix J
to the report be agreed;
3. That the base budget changes set out in paragraphs 8.1 to 8.9 of the
report and summarised in appendix C to the report including a phased use
of reserves be agreed;
4. That the savings proposed in appendix D, to the report, be agreed;
5. That the rent reduction of 1% as mandated by the government be noted
and that the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget 2016/17 (appendix
E to the report), including changes to service charges and heating
charges, be agreed;
Capital Programme
6. That the revised capital programme for 2016/17 to 2019/20 with a total
spend of £184.945m, including the proposed funding arrangements and
policies, as set out in section 9 of the report and appendix F to the report
be agreed;
7. That authorisation be given for expenditure to be incurred of £12.380m for
the detailed 2016/17 Housing Capital Programme (appendix F3) and
£852k for Expenditure on Corporate Operational Buildings (appendix F4);
Reserves
8. That the policy on reserves set out in paragraphs 8.33 to 8.36 pf the
report be agreed and that the reserve movements proposed in paragraph
8.35 of the report be noted;
Treasury Management
9. That the Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17 which includes the
annual investment strategy, prudential indicators and borrowing limits as
set out in appendix G to the report be approved;
Council Tax
10. That council tax for 2016/17 be agreed at £1,210.03 for a Band D
property, an increase of £23.27 (2%) for the adult social care ‘precept’ and
£23.16 (1.99%) for general purposes;
3

Agenda Item 3

Page 4

Strategy and Resources Committee
8 February 2016

11. That the formal resolution at appendix H, including the council tax
requirement of £85.391m be approved;
12. That the proposed Greater London Authority precept of £276, reduced
from £295 in 2015/16 be noted;
Other
13. That the Council’s pay policy statement for 2016/17 (appendix I) be
approved;
14. That the Members’ Allowances Scheme 2016/17 (appendix K) be
approved; and
15. That it be noted that Councillors Basic Allowance and Special
Responsibility Allowance will be increased or decreased by the amount of
the local government pay settlement each year and that the Monitoring
Officer be delegated authority to update the scheme to reflect any such
increase or decrease.
16. That the announcement today (8 February) of the final Local Government
Finance Settlement be noted and that the impact of this will be included
for consideration by Members in the final budget report to Full Council
on 7 March.
57.
MEMORANDUM OF COOPERATION BETWEEN ROYAL BOROUGH OF
KINGSTON AND LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON AND NEXT STEPS FOR
SHARED SERVICES
The committee considered proposals for a strategic partnership between Sutton and
Kingston which built on existing shared service arrangements.
Resolved
1. That the revised Memorandum of Cooperation between the two Boroughs set
out at Appendix A to the report b approved.
2. That officers be instructed to examine the business case for the establishment
of a jointly owned company by the London Borough of Sutton and the Royal
Borough of Kingston, as a vehicle for delivering current and future shared
services, including options for joint Member oversight of these arrangements,
and to report back on the business case and delivery options in the next cycle
of this committee.
3. That it be noted that the same proposal and recommendations will be
presented to the Treasury Committee of the Royal Borough of Kingston on 11
February 2016.

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 3
Strategy and Resources Committee
8 February 2016

The meeting ended at 9.29 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 5

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Market Development Strategy 2016-2021

Report from:

Jessica Crowe, Executive Head, Customers, Commissioning and
Governance

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council
Councillor Simon Wales, Deputy Leader of the Council
Tom Alexander, Head of Strategic Business, 020 8770 4522
Simon Bishop, Commissioning and Business Insight Officer 020 8770
4394
● An Open Council
● A Green Council
● A Smart Council
Open

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date:

Date:

11 April 2016

30 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

Sutton faces increasingly complex and growing demand for services. A rising population, driven
by high rates of inward migration from other London Boroughs, a high birth rate and an
increasing number of elderly inhabitants with complex health needs pose a significant challenge
to our existing public services. At the same time, the authority has planned savings of £16m
over the next three years and must find a further £16m by 2019/20 in order to fill the projected
funding gap. This follows savings of £41m already achieved since 2010, equivalent in total to
around 40% of our 2010/11 budget. Sutton’s public services must therefore be precisely
targeted, efficiently run and capable of providing what our customers need.

1.2

Drawing on a model first outlined by the Office for Fair Trading (OfT), the Market Development
Strategy helps the Council achieve these objectives by establishing clarity and consistency in
shaping and managing the markets within which we operate.

1.3

The Strategy starts out by analysing our current approach to market development, before
assessing our strengths and pinpointing areas for potential improvement. A Public Service
Diagnostics Tool, developed by the Institute for Government (IfG), enables commissioners to
extend and systematise their knowledge of market intervention. The tool complements the OfT
model by drawing out the risks of operating in different markets and how we can manage them
for the benefit of our residents and service users. Finally the strategy includes an action plan,
co-produced with the Council’s Commissioning Board,that explains how we will apply insights
from the IfG and OfT to maximise the benefits of competition, to shape and manage public

Agenda Item 5

Page 8

service markets in Sutton. As part of the development of our strategy, the IfG have requested
permission to cite our approach as an example of good practice in the public sector.
1.4

The Market Development Strategy will deliver multiple benefits. Our initial consultative work
with commissioners has enabled them to consider if, when and how they can influence markets
for public benefit. Drawing out our strengths in services across Sutton, commissioners can now
compare and prioritise sectors for further development. Applying the OfT model to our
understanding of the market will engender a clear and consistent approach across the authority.
This is likely to reduce transaction costs which, conversely would have been likely to increase
during times new and different commissioning challenges. Embedded within the model, the IfG
diagnostic tool identifies risks which commissioners are likely to encounter as they operate
within different markets. The tool will enable commissioners to weigh up these different risks
and develop suitable mitigating actions in their approach to contracting and procurement.
Finally, the document gives a clearer steer as to the Council’s commissioning intentions for the
medium term.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

To agree to the Council-wide adoption of the Market Development Strategy (to be reviewed by
the LBS Commissioning Board as part of the annual commissioning planning cycle) - Option 1
as set out below.

3.

Background

3.1

The Members’ vision for Sutton as set out in 2012 makes clear our desire to develop both the
diversity of service provision on offer and innovation within the market. We recognise that this
vision may change through the refresh of the corporate plan, however any future direction is
likely to benefit from a robust market development strategy. The strategy is further supported
by our Commissioning Framework and our Procurement Strategy, both of which confirm the
Council’s collaboration with service users, private and voluntary providers to meet the needs of
our residents and stakeholders. Each Commissioning Directorate also publishes an annual
Market Position Statement linked to the Council’s Strategic Commissioning Plan. The Market
Position Statement signals to potential providers what we are seeking to achieve during a given
financial year. Position statements are often complemented by regular provider forums to
discuss commissioning intentions in further detail. It is our intention to build future plans on a 3
year cycle to reassure the market over our commitment to achieving strategic, corporate aims.

4.

Issues

4.1

Successful commissioning is enhanced where markets are used to drive down costs and raise
quality. Opportunities to achieve this are present in new responsibilities that local authorities
now have. In the sphere of public health for example Sutton’s Health and Wellbeing Board
challenges Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to ensure that the needs of local people are
properly understood and met in a cost effective way.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

4.2

Sutton’s Council-wide commissioning approach asks officers, residents and stakeholders to
grasp opportunities like this, thinking through what needs we are trying to meet, what outcomes
are important to the local population and how we go about meeting them.

4.3

As part of the work behind this report, a consultation with leading commissioners in the authority
prompted a highly varied response indicating a diversity of knowledge and awareness of the
market sectors within which Sutton commissioners operate.

4.4

To maximise the benefits of market opportunities and to complement the Council’s
Commissioning Strategy, there is a clear need to draw on our learning so far to widen and
embed a corporate approach to market development across all markets within which the
Council operates. Council officers have collaborated with the Institute for Government to
achieve this. A tool has been constructed and successfully piloted a tool that supports
commissioners in systematically analysing the markets they operate in. The tool also facilitates
getting better value from markets and managing attendant risks.

4.5

Sutton’s total annual budget of approximately £145m is small compared to £1.9 billion of overall
public sector spend in the Borough. One important challenge is to ensure that the authority
leverages further investment through active partnerships across the public, private and
voluntary sectors. With a wide set of skills, local knowledge and capacity in areas like transport,
housing and infrastructure, Sutton is well placed to lead local growth initiatives through
partnership vehicles like the Opportunity Sutton Economic Growth Programme. Through pooled
budgets like the Better Care Fund, co-managed with Sutton’s Clinical Commissioning Group,
more investment can be shifted from hospitals into the community. Through the targeting of
prevention with public health initiatives like smoking cessation and childhood obesity campaigns
the authority will be challenged by new sectors working in different ways.

4.6

At a local level Sutton is well placed to generate more economic activity and social reciprocity
by building on projects like Sutton Shares, the Borough’s time-banking currency that rewards
local volunteering. Sutton will also be well advised to learn from community schemes like the
Brixton Pound, a local currency that local SMEs use alongside £ sterling to increase local trade,
business diversity and economic dynamism. There are early discussions with our voluntary
sector to consider implementing something similar in Sutton as well as exploration of a Local
Giving model.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Option 1 - One cross-council strategy & one accompanying Market Positioning Strategy (MPS)
This is the recommended option as it recognises the Council’s collective buying power and that
different commissioning teams can often trade with similar suppliers. This option makes clear
what the organisation is seeking to do, in once place, and should be more accessible to the
market based on historic feedback from suppliers.

5.2

Option 2 - Directorate specific strategies & position statements
This is similar to our current approach and is rejected as it leads to duplicated work and,
sometimes, confusing messages to the market. It is also unhelpful as an approach to

Agenda Item 5

Page 10

collaborative commissioning across the Council. It does allow for more sector specific detail,
however it is anticipated that this can be monitored by the Commissioning Board to ensure
relevant information is picked up through good market testing and broadcast via existing
provider forums.
5.3

Option 3 - Minimum market development
The Council could opt to simply publish an annual commissioning plan and then include details
as invitations to tender are published. This would involve minimal officer time, however the
option has been rejected as it has been demonstrated nationally by the Institute of Public Care
and the Institute for Government that alerting the market to medium term commissioning
intentions and engaging on solutions tends to lead to better outcomes and better value.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

6.2

Effective commissioning helps to ensure that the Council procures goods and services that
meet identified needs at a price that represents good value for money. Systematic analysis of
markets can generate opportunities to reduce costs and/or improve service quality. In addition,
financial and other risks can be established, allowing mitigating actions to be planned and
implemented.
Preferred option 1 is expected to improve commissioning performance and help to contribute to
reduced and better targeted spend by the Council. The cost of developing the strategy will be
contained within existing budgets.
Legal

6.3

The Council is a best value authority under the Local Government Act 1999. The
recommendation set out within this report, to create one cross-council strategy and one
accompanying Market Positioning Strategy, appears to discharge the Council’s best value duty,
in that the Council is seeking to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the
way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.

6.4

By seeking to commission, the Council is required to comply with the EU treaty principles of
equality, transparency and non-discrimination for below threshold contracts and the Public
Contracts Regulations 2015 for above threshold contracts.

6.5

Legal advice will be required as to the contractual provisions of agreements, in order to achieve
the position set out in Market Strategy.
Procurement

6.6

It will be challenging for commissioners to meet the prescribed requirements of the Contracts
Regulations 2015 with regards to relevance and proportionality as all requirements need to be
contract specific. Contract management is of paramount importance to ensure vfm year on year

Page 11

Agenda Item 5

and contract specifications need to be flexible to capture evolving services in a continually
changing marketplace.
7.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix letter

Title

A

Market Development Strategy 2016-2021

Background documents
The Public Service Markets Diagnostic Tool, The Institute for Government (IfG), 2015
Developing Public Service Markets, The Office of Fair Trading (OfT), 2013
Sutton Commissioning Framework, Sutton Council, 2015
Sutton Procurement Strategy, Sutton Council, 2015

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 30 March 2015

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Phil Butlin

Legal

Yes

Susan Moussa

Procurement

Yes

Rosemary Allen

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
MARKET DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY
2016-2021

1

Agenda Item 5

Page 14
APPENDIX A

Table of Contents
Our Approach
Key Drivers
Implications
Our Vision
Our Challenges
Mapping supply and demand of Sutton services
Understanding our markets and how we influence them
Knowing our strengths and potential areas for development
Our opportunities
Building on our strengths
The Institute for Government (IfG) Public Service Markets Tool
Applying Insights from the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) Model
Understanding where competition is possible
Linking competition to policy objectives
Ensuring clarity and consistency in management of competition
Objectives and roles of regulators
Designing contracts to develop competition
Evaluating market mechanisms
Addressing provider failure
Stakeholder responses
Our Plan
Our Message
Appendices

2

Page 15

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Our Approach
Key Drivers
The past three decades have witnessed an onward march towards the marketisation of
public services. According to Price-Waterhouse-Coopers, local authorities are no longer
seen solely as vehicles to execute social policy mandated by legislation, but often as another
provider whose services must meet a standard that, broadly speaking, equates with public
expectations in any given epoch. In a competitive marketplace the imperative is to increase
the quality of public services, provisioning in a more differentiated way than in the past which
reflects more sophisticated consumer demand. Another important driver is the need to
reduce cost in an environment of significant public sector funding constraint.
To further widen the scope of introducing markets to public services, in 2010 the coalition
government began increasing the use of ‘black box commissioning’, the tendering out of
entire service areas to the private and third sectors. At the same time Sutton’s
commissioning approach affords external providers and consumers the opportunity to play
an active role in shaping service design through early engagement as part of a market
consultation process.

Implications
Key message
The scope of commissioning is widening and with it the skillset required of an effective
commissioner who has the task of using markets simultaneously to manage demand,
improve quality, and control cost.
The role of Local Authorities as lead commissioners in their local areas is increasing in scale
and complexity. Alongside the existing range of services that councils offer, the
responsibility for public health transferred from the NHS in April 2013. The responsibility for
health care has moved to both Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and Local Authorities
from Primary Care Trusts. Health & Wellbeing Boards, established by upper tier and unitary
local authorities, comprising of members from the Council, the CCG, HealthWatch, NHS
Commissioning Board and any other appropriate representatives, are forums where key
leaders from health and care system work together to improve the health and wellbeing of
their local population and reduce health inequalities. There are also fundamental drivers for
commissioners that result from the current financial climate, as well as other national
initiatives, which can be broadly summarised as:
●
●
●

Commissioning and integration to reduce costs
Commissioning to meet evidenced need rather than perceived demand
Commissioning for personalisation – both in terms of new markets and new
solutions.

In Sutton, we have agreed to a council-wide commissioning approach that asks officers,
residents and stakeholders to think through what assets are available, what needs are we
3

Agenda Item 5

Page 16
APPENDIX A

aiming to meet, what outcomes are important to the local population and how we can best
meet those needs and deliver against those outcomes whilst reducing resource demands.
A smarter council has to commission a wider variety of provision but also needs to assert
itself as the strategic commissioning lead for the local area. In doing so, it has to understand
its whole population, the market from which providers emerge that deliver services to that
population and how that picture is changing, even where the duty to provide those services
does not rest with the council. In short, we will not “do everything” but we will need to be
much clearer about what needs to be done and ensure those that should be meeting a need
are doing so.

4

Page 17

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Our Vision
We have a vision for the contribution that market development will make to Sutton’s Future.

“Sutton will lead the conversation with our partners, gaining insight to
manage demand; shaping the market so that we deliver high quality,
efficient and responsive public services.”

5

Agenda Item 5

Page 18
APPENDIX A

Our Challenges
Mapping supply and demand of Sutton services
Key message
Driven by inward migration from other London Boroughs and greater longevity, demand for
our services is increasing, becoming more segmented, nuanced and complex. We need to
draw upon the dynamism of the market to keep up with public expectations.

As the above graphic shows,demand for our services overall is expected to increase. There
is evidence 1that the issues people are dealing with are becoming more challenging as they
live longer, sometimes with particularly complex health needs. In many cases our older
residents are also facing a financially insecure future.

1

http://www.bild.org.uk/information/ageingwell/background/ &

http://www.parliament.uk/business/publications/research/key-issues-parliament-2015/socialchange/ageing-population/

6

Page 19

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

The table below lists responses from Sutton’s commissioners to questions regarding the
current demand and supply profiles for different Council Services, pinpointing areas of
significant challenge in the future.
Health and Social Care

Q's

Prevention
Services - Adults

Prevention
Services Children’s

Targeted
Community Support Complex Needs

1. What is the
aggregate level of
demand for health
and social care?

High

High

Medium

Medium

2. Is demand set to
increase over the
next 5 years?
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

3. Are the above
areas facing a
supply crunch?

No

Yes

Yes

A diverse
marketplace that
is somewhat
reliant on public
sector funding via
grants or small
scale
commissioning
activity.

Diverse market
place, but
competing demands
for local supply from
other public sector
organisations. In
Diverse market, but
some instances
local recruitment and accommodation in
supply issues starting the market may not
to emerge
meet requirements.

No

Large number of
providers within the
market. Although
an emerging trend
re ability to recruit
and retain staff.
Supplier market in
4. What are the
some instances
reasons behind this reliant on public
supply crunch?
sector funding.

Environment, Housing and Regeneration

Questions

Parks

Waste
Collection

Regeneration

Planning

1. What is the
aggregate level of
demand for
Environment,
Housing and
Regeneration
markets?

High

High

Medium to High

High

2. Is demand set to Yes2

Yes3

Yes4

Yes5

2
3

Playgrounds and public space
All aspects of waste collection & street cleaning

7

Page 20

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A
increase over the
next 5 years?
3. Are the above
areas facing a
critical supply
crunch?

Yes6

4. What are the
Very complex area
reasons behind this of demand.
supply crunch?

Yes7

Unknown

No
Greater competition
Unknown
with other borough to
attract more residents
and businesses
leading to more
complex projects and
desired outcomes.

Red = Critical
Amber = Medium alert
Green = Less critical

As the above table shows, critical areas for the Council’s future market involvement revolve
around affordable housing provision and different aspects of adult social care. This presents
a challenge to the Council as the market prepares for an increase in capacity that could be
volatile and a change in capability that will be more responsive to changing customer
expectations. Taking an example from the affordable housing market, there commissioners
have highlighted the difficulties of equipping young people with the necessary skills to enter
the building trade and signalled a need for SME builders to develop small scale brownfield
sites for residential housing. Collaboration with other local authorities is likely to be
important here and will require coordination and buy in to Sutton’s Market Development
Strategy from our neighbours, Merton, Kingston, Surrey and Croydon.
More broadly, shaping markets will require better intelligence, more collaborative
relationships with our partners, for example through the South London Partnership and the
voluntary sector Compact, and a system of clearer rewards & penalties. Shaping the market
will also need a more strategic approach from the Council. We start by seeking to
understand our influence on markets before looking in greater detail at where our priorities
for market development should be over the next five years, markets where we believe we
are likely to face a supply crunch as detailed in the table above and markets considered
ready for future development.

Understanding our markets and how we influence them

4

Increased infrastructure development which supports population growth and economic development.
Planning applications for new build and other development control aspects.
6
Adequate provision of bailiffs services for Traveller incursions.
7
Provision of complex projects incorporating design, economic analysis, resident engagement,
partnership working, etc.
5

8

Page 21

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Key Message
Commissioners move beyond telling the market what they want, to actively growing,
strengthening and shaping the market
To respond to these challenges, Sutton needs to understand the markets where our direct
buying power will enable us to leverage certain outcomes and those where our role is that of
facilitator to support local people to shape future delivery. Sutton’s total annual budget of
approximately £145m is small compared to £1.9 billion of overall public sector spend in the
Borough. One important challenge is to ensure that the authority leverages further
investment through active partnerships across the public, private and voluntary sectors. With
a wide set of skills, local knowledge and capacity in areas like transport, housing and
infrastructure, Sutton is well placed to lead local growth initiatives through partnership
vehicles like the Opportunity Sutton Economic Growth Programme.
Through pooled budgets like the Better Care Fund, co-managed with Sutton’s Clinical
Commissioning Group, more investment can be shifted from hospitals into the community.
Through the targeting of prevention with public health initiatives like smoking cessation and
childhood obesity campaigns the authority will be challenged by new sectors working in
different ways.
At a local level Sutton is well placed to generate more economic activity and social
reciprocity by building on projects like Sutton Shares, the Borough’s time-banking currency
that rewards local volunteering. Sutton will also be well advised to learn from community
schemes like the Brixton Pound, a local currency that local SMEs use alongside £ sterling to
increase local trade, business diversity and economic dynamism. There are early
discussions with our voluntary sector to consider implementing something similar in Sutton
as well as exploration of a Local Giving model.

9

Agenda Item 5

Page 22
APPENDIX A

Regardless of the services that the council commissions (and whether internally or externally
provided) they should align to broader priorities and corporate strategy. However the 3
types of market intervention outlined in the table above suggest a subtly different approach
to influencing the market depending on; spending power, market maturity/competitiveness
and corporate priority. The challenge for the Council is to commission across the market
and, therefore to develop an approach that is flexible enough to take account of these
differing characteristics. This is, of course, further complicated when commissioning jointly
with other organisations who may deploy other approaches when trying to influence the
market.
The first column, Market Stewardship could be applied to waste collection where the market
is driven by efficiency and profit and commissioners need to use formal arrangements to
affect what the market delivers.
The second column, Market Nudging is more about how a service is delivered, for example it
could be a leisure service situated somewhere that has a relatively high number of older
people. In this case the commissioner could use intelligence to refocus the service offer,
looking for opportunities to integrate their work with partners in order to meet public health
obligations. Similarly this could apply to social care provision that is directly commissioned
by the council but needs a negotiated approach to ensure provider insight and innovation is
harnessed.
The third column focuses on influencing the market, of vital importance in social care where
a large majority of providers may not rely on the council for business. This is particularly
germane to Sutton where the Council signals to the market that it does not intend to
purchase residential/nursing care placements, preferring supported living accommodation
instead. In this case, it will be important for commissioners to make clear to the market
10

Page 23

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

what their intelligence is suggesting. Commissioners will then have to think how providers
can be encouraged rather than obliged to meet local need. The sections are permeable.
Over time it may be that localism/devolution changes the balance of provision within each for
example, leading to fewer instances of councils directly commissioning services.
The emerging landscape therefore, is one where services will be commissioned at a variety
of spatial levels whilst accommodating significant population ‘churn’ (as cited by the Office
for National Statistics in recent years). This will require commissioning in partnership to meet
a wider range of need without necessarily having sufficient resources to purchase a bespoke
solution. If Local Authorities are to fulfil their commissioning obligations they will need to do
the following:
●
●
●
●
●

Share with current potential providers the intelligence we have on population trends,
current and projected demand and supply patterns for the services we commission
Make known how we think the market needs to change over time in response to
changing expectations and other drivers
Ensure partner organisations deploying services in their local areas help shape and
then understand and own the strategic commissioning priorities in that area.
Facilitate greater (and more mature) discussion with local people so that need is met
rather than perceived demand.
Work proactively with providers about how we will intervene in the market encourage
new solutions and new entrants, explaining why we may need to disinvest in some
areas and increase spending in others..

These activities do not solely rely on purchasing and contracting but on using and sharing
data more effectively, engaging more meaningfully and negotiating confidently.
In order to achieve these objectives we start by analysing our current market status before
going on to determine strengths and areas for future development.
The market sectors within which the London Borough of Sutton operates are shown below
together with their relative scale based on size of budget. A more detailed list of market
sector sub-categories is provided in Appendix B.

11

Agenda Item 5

Page 24
APPENDIX A

Knowing our strengths and potential areas for development
Key message
Sutton has made progress in collaborating with neighbouring Councils to deliver services
in a more cost-effective way (£8.5M savings 2015/16). However, market development
including the introduction of fully fledged businesses, in many cases run by staff, will be
equally important in the future.
The London Borough of Sutton has made a public commitment8 to developing an
increasingly mixed economy of provision rather than continuing to be the main provider of
local services. In practice this means using different models to deliver services. Sutton now
has:
●
●
●
●
●

8

14 Shared services with public sector partners of various sizes and configurations
and more being explored.
An Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) looking after the Council’s
housing stock.
Its first fully mutualised service (Cygnet IT Services) with more planned over
2016/17.
A new Housing Development Company (Sutton Living) that will enable the Council to
build housing to meet changing need.
A commercial vehicle under our Opportunity Sutton programme that will enable a
Local Authority Trading Company (LATC).

Sutton Residents First: Implementing the Smarter Council, 2012

12

Page 25

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

These initiatives are geared towards ensuring residents needs are met by the most
appropriate people and as efficiently as possible. They are at the furthest end of market
development in the authority. However, as part of the work behind this strategy we have
researched where local markets are strongest, prioritising those with the potential to
innovate adapt and develop the market further. This will shed light on, and bring clarity to
how it will use diminishing resources and make savings in the medium term.
Key message
We build on the strengths of our services, ensuring that they evolve to meet the
challenges of more sophisticated demand in a climate of constrained public resources.
We must commission in partnership with users, drawing also on provider insight to
influence the market delivering the quality services our residents expect.
Health and Social Care - Market Strengths and Development Areas

Q's

Prevention
Prevention
Services Services - Adults Children’s

Targeted
Community
Support

Complex Needs

Mature
Market?

Yes in specific
areas

Yes in specific
areas

Yes9

Yes

Market
development
potential??

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Role in
managing
supply and
demand?

Yes

Yes10

Yes11

Yes12

Environment, Housing and Regeneration

Qs

Parks

Waste
Collection

Regeneration

Planning

Mature
market?

Yes, in specific
areas.13

All aspects of
service.

Yes, in specific
areas14

More research
needed

Medium, in specific
areas16

More research
needed

Some development
made17

More research
needed

Development Medium, in specific Under continual
areas15
potential?
review
7. Role of

Some
development

Market play
significant role.

9

Diverse market of national organisations; service model easily taken up by local businesses
Key role - helping to maintain carer health and wellbeing, and by extension reduce needs of cared
for (however, lack of empirical evidence about impact)
11
Role in preventing development of needs - but lack of empirical evidence about impact
12
Key role - but lack of empirical evidence about impact
13
Provision of play equipment.
14
General management consultancy
15
Resident management and involvement in public spaces and parks.
16
Consortium and partnership working
10

13

Page 26

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A
markets in
managing
supply and
demand?

made.

Red = Market development weak or not known
Amber = Market development moderate and/or possible in specific areas
Green = Market present and/or further development desirable

17

Continued development of these markets to encourage a more collaborative approach and better
understanding of the Council's aims and needs.

14

Page 27

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Our Opportunities
Building on our strengths
The key challenge is now to begin the process of developing markets in the above areas. A
number of different Sutton strategies and policies so far add up to provide a partial picture
explaining how this can be done. The sections below bring all these together in one place
and, drawing upon insights from the Institute for Government, provide commissioners with
tools to analyse and develop their markets further.

The Institute for Government (IfG) Public Service Markets Tool
Key message
We have a piloted tool to guide commissioners through the process of understanding the
markets in which they operate, where and how they can make further development
possible, the attendant risks, ways to mitigate them, and what the likely outcomes will be.
According to the IfG, services have inherent properties which make market mechanisms
easier or difficult to use. The point is to understand what these properties are and identify
some of the risks attached to the use of market mechanisms in these public services. In
conducting the assessment it is important not to rule out using market mechanisms simply
because of the presence of risk but to consider ways in which it can be identified, mitigated,
or controlled, for instance through co-commissioning in cases where risks are co-dependent
across different services.
A tool, developed by the Institute for Government and piloted in Sutton set out below
provides practical support to commissioners seeking to confirm their hypotheses regarding
which markets can be strengthened. The tool also assists commissioners in identifying and
managing risk in developing markets.

Understanding your market through the Public Service Markets Diagnostic Tool
A Word from The Institute for Government (IfG)
The public service markets diagnostic tool is aimed at anyone in central or local government
involved with public service delivery which includes an element of choice or competition. It was
developed from our extensive research on how to make public service markets work more
effectively. The diagnostic tool is a practical way for commissioners to identify risks and possible
remedies within the markets they manage.
The tool analyses a particular public service market in depth by asking multiple-choice questions
on the following:
- the characteristics of the service (for example how predictable demand is)
- the way in which the market is set-up (for example the number of providers and the length of
contracts)
- the capacity in the organisation to manage the market (for example in monitoring performance
and identifying potential problems).
15

Agenda Item 5

Page 28
APPENDIX A

When the tool has been completed it produces a tailored report with practical suggestions for
addressing the risks identified. The tool takes most people about 15 minutes to complete. We
hope it will be used by commissioners to help identify risks at an early stage of market
development, and help them consider how to make systems flexible and responsive to changing
conditions18.

Applying Insights from the Office of Fair Trading (OFT) Model
Now that we have examined market strengths and areas for development and tested our
hypotheses with the IfG market analysis tool, it is necessary to refine and optimise our
approach, improving outcomes for residents and using competition to manage rising demand
and cost pressures. For this purpose , we have considered our performance against a
model developed by the Office of Fair Trading19 (OFT).

It is expected that we will achieve 3 key outcomes by working with the OFT model and the
Institute for Government (IfG) tool. We will:
1. Have captured and shared market intelligence across the Council and with our key
partners.
2. Be clear about what we need from the market to help us achieve our corporate
priorities.
3. Set out how we will intervene in order to lead market development where required.

Understanding where competition is possible
As an organisation that commissions over 800 services, the Council operates in a number of
different market sectors, each of which has its own dynamics and conventions that impact on
how commissioners engage with them. The provision of waste collection, as noted earlier, is
a mature and dynamic market where costs have been driven down through competition.
18

Please give us feedback on the usefulness of the tool so that we can continue to support its future
development
19
Office of Fair Trading Developing Public Service Markets, 2013

16

Page 29

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Healthcare is very different as the NHS continues to have a monopoly over the provision of
health services. Competition is therefore minimal despite successive national Governments
attempting to increase this. Although many commentators believe this monopoly is
weakening, it remains for now.

Linking competition to policy objectives
The Members’ vision for Sutton as set out in 2012 makes clear our desire to develop both
the range of provision on offer and innovation within the market.. This is further supported
by our Commissioning Framework and our Procurement Strategy, both of which confirm the
Council’s collaboration with private and voluntary providers to meet the needs of our
residents and stakeholders. Each Commissioning Directorate also publishes an annual
Market Position Statement linking to the Council’s Strategic Commissioning Plan signalling
to potential providers what we may be seeking to achieve during any specific financial year.
These are often complemented by regular provider forums to discuss in further detail. It is
our intention to build future plans on a 3 year cycle to give the market reassurance over our
medium term aims.
Council commissioners are also expected to run market consultation sessions to test what
can be done (and at what price) during any significant commissioning exercise. Sometimes
these are early stage discussions before a service specification has been agreed (often
called soft market testing) and sometimes these are more detailed conversations once a
specification has been written. We recognise that we do not have all the answers and
therefore encourage anyone who wants to do business with us to register on the London
Tender Portal so that they receive information about our upcoming commissioning activity
and, specifically, invitations to market testing events.

Ensuring clarity and consistency in management of competition
Sutton Council abides by the principles of a well established approach to fostering
competition. Formulated as part of a Council-wide competition policy, the reasoning behind
the approach is as follows:
●
●
●
●
●

As a public body the Council is bound by the legislative requirements of the principles
of cross border trade and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
The increasing financial restraints on the Council mean that it needs to obtain more
for every pound spent.
Competition is recognised as a method which is successful in achieving reductions in
price and achieving value for money.
Competition facilitates the market to put forward commercial and innovative solutions
to achieve the specified outcomes
The open tendering of, in particular, smaller contracts is a major contributor to
providing opportunity for local small organisations to participate and strengthen the
local economy.

Sutton’s Competition Policy is included as appendix A of this document.

Objectives and roles of regulators

17

Page 30

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A
The table below matches the most important market sectors for the London Borough of
Sutton to the regulators operating within it and any relevant targets, powers and purpose of
their regulatory responsibility:
Market Sector20 Regulator(s)

Regulatory
Target

Stated Rationale

Buildings

Homes and
Communities
Agency

Social
landlords

Creates successful communities
by making more homes and
business premises available.
Regulates social housing
providers in England

Health & Social
Care

Care Quality
Commission

Health and
Adult Social
Care Services

Monitor, inspect and regulate
services to meet quality and
safety standards. Publish
findings to help people choose
care

Facilities &
Services

Health and
Safety
Executive

Employers
and Staff

Matters which may affect the
health and safety of anyone at
work or the public as a result of
work activities

Business &
Finance

National Audit
Office

Local
Government

Proper conduct of public
business, value for money, fraud
and corruption in local
government
Matters relating to occupational
pension schemes
Sale of goods or provision of
services that might adversely
affect the consumer

The Pensions
Regulator

Office of Fair
Trading
Transport

Transport for
London

The provision of transport
services

Rail
Franchises

Matters relating to rail services

Education &
Leisure

OFSTED

Environmental
Services

OFGEM
OFWAT

20

To maintain and improve quality
of teaching

See APPENDIX B - Service Sub-Categories Pie Chart 1

18

Page 31

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Other

Environment
Agency

All
organisations

Acts or omissions that have an
impact on the environment

Information
commissioner

Public Bodies

Ensuring compliance with the
Freedom of Information Act

It is expected that commissioners will consider the impact of sector regulators when testing
the market initially and then build in appropriate performance indicators into any subsequent
contract management arrangements.

Designing contracts to develop competition
Effective contract design plays a key role in developing competition by providing clear,
transparent rules to achieve tangible outcomes. The clarity of corporate and sectoral policy
therefore remains important as a framework guide to would be providers. Sutton’s
Corporate Plan and the Council’s Commissioning Framework both fulfil the high level
requirement, with related strategies used at an operational level. Spelling out outcomes and
objectives for a particular service to deliver, whilst leaving scope for innovation and the
delivery of added value is key. Sutton’s use of Developmental Assets provides scope for
imaginative providers to build on individual and community assets, stretching the scope of
their contribution to add social value in the Borough.
According to the Institute for Government, effective contract design, built on firm foundations
should then enable a market that facilitates the following pre-conditions for further
development. We expect to see commissioners adopting that approach in Sutton.
●

New providers to enter the market

We carefully consider how any specification we publish encourages or discourages new
organisations to bid. Significant upfront investment relative to the size of the interested
provider is one such potential entry barrier. This can refer to both ‘hard’ physical
infrastructure such as specialised equipment, or buildings but also ‘soft infrastructure’ such
as market knowledge or special access rights that may have been captured and guarded by
an incumbent. Insider knowledge could be costly for a new provider to obtain especially
when it involves the collection of data or information accrued from personal interviews or
networks of contacts. Successful contract design makes this information available to any
provider beyond the lifetime of the first contract period and considers ways to minimise up
front building or infrastructure costs for new providers. However, in the case of knowledge
acquisition, effective contract design should incentivise the incumbent to systematise the
collection of information and data, making it available as a public resource for future
providers beyond the duration of their contract.
In Sutton we are aware that long and complex bidding processes can likewise create entry
barriers to new providers, especially those from the SME sector who are competing with
large suppliers or incumbents. We learn from the experience of public service contracts. In
the case of NHS dental contracts, for example, the majority are indefinite and only a very
small volume are put out to tender each year. The tendering process is lengthy and places
19

Agenda Item 5

Page 32
APPENDIX A

significant weight on past experience, insulating dental practices with an existing NHS dental
contract from fair competition. The Office of Fair Trading recommended in this case that
contract payment for dentistry should follow the patient so that any licensed dentist can
compete for NHS funding. In Sutton, the procurement team provides bid guidance to SMEs
that simplifies qualifying criteria to reduce the administrative burden associated with
submission. As far as possible contracts are broken down into smaller packages to allow a
wider range of suppliers to participate, especially SMEs and we welcome consortium and
partnership bids. There may also be a requirement to vary contracts in response to either
the provider or the commissioner’s wishes. It is our expectation that all contracts will allow
for this and that a collaborative approach be taken unless specifically stated otherwise
during the contract award phase.
●

Vigorous competition

The Council stays abreast of the market beyond the incumbent and encourages interest at
an early stage in the tendering process through market consultation. This usually involves a
facilitated event providing the commissioner with an opportunity to test the market, to
understand its possible capacity and capability whilst seeing how the tender can maximise
social value by building on market strengths. For the supplier, the event provides an
opportunity to understand more concretely what the commissioner is looking for, identify
possible contract collaborators, and survey market competition. A better quality submission
is typically the outcome of early communication, albeit arranged in a structured way to
ensure that attendees do not receive an unfair market advantage. Using the London
Tenders Portal helps to do this by extending the reach of potential suppliers as widely as
possible. A level playing field is further created, generating wider interest through a system
that formalises an auditable, staged approach restricting opportunities for side
communications between the commissioner and certain suppliers that can bestow an unfair
advantage. Local Authorities are required to publish new procurement opportunities above
£25,000 on Contracts Finder, in addition to the local portal used. This complies with the
transparency obligations placed on local authorities. For below EU threshold contracts, the
requirement to publish does not apply where a contracting authority is making an opportunity
known to a closed group who have already been selected.
Moving on from market consultation the next step is to specify and design the contract,
making sure that it does not last too long and, in some cases unwittingly provide incumbents
with a monopoly position and excessive financial security. There should be sufficient
provisions to further challenge poor performance if it does not reach required levels. In 2005
the Home Office awarded 9 year contracts to Serco and G4S to provide and install electronic
tagging equipment, monitor compliance with prisoner release curfews and report any
breaches. Short term incentives to improve service quality were absent, as were those to
work with local partners or respond to technological innovation in prisoner tagging. In 9
years, significant technological advancement took place in tagging. Although replacing
obsolescent tags would have saved money, neither Serco and G4S had an incentive to
make a switch to new technology as the requirement to do so was not specified in the
contract.

20

Page 33

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

The Council welcomes appropriate dialogue in order to test what the market can offer in a
way that encourages objectivity during tender evaluation and also offers some contracts
divided into smaller ‘lots’ to allow SME’s or new suppliers who may prefer an incremental
entry into a new market.
●

Competition on desired outcomes

A preference for the delivery of tangible ‘things’ or ‘outputs’ over often more esoteric and
hard to measure outcomes can lead to bias in contract design towards meeting a set of
quantifiable targets. This can create perverse incentives for providers to ‘game the system’
or to undervalue elements of a contract that deliver unquantifiable characteristics. There are
plentiful national examples to draw upon from home care to road maintenance where actions
are monitored (someone is visited or a pothole is repaired) but the outcome is not (that
person needed a bath but had a meal cooked instead or the pothole repair disintegrated in
cold weather). There can also be tendency to overlook or ignore altogether targets that are
not easily quantifiable and yet highly valuable, for instance around levels of kindness and
sensitivity exhibited in caring for someone.
In Sutton the possibility for bias is addressed through a clear set of corporate priorities that
are delivered through a robust commissioning framework. The framework requires
interpretation of these corporate outcomes at service level, setting out a contracting
methodology that delivers them in practice. Further scope for service innovation from the
potential supplier is encouraged through a list of community and individual assets that can
be built into bid submissions to win a competitive advantage. The Council aligns
performance indicators with the outcomes that the service is commissioned to achieve. In
the case of Sutton’s Healthwatch contract which provides support to people wishing to
access or complain about health and social care in the Borough, more emphasis has
recently been placed on capturing feedback from the service about whether it is meeting
their needs than on for example the number of people who received information, complained
or the number of Boards on which Healthwatch sits. Where there is a constellation of
providers delivering similar services (e.g. homecare or information/advice), we now assess
competence by balancing the number of people seen against the outcome delivered and are
finding this can challenge more traditional methods of service delivery. In this example
commissioners are then able to consider conversion rates when evaluating provider
performance.
●

Providers exit in an orderly way

Although it may feel counterintuitive to think about an exit strategy at the start of a
relationship, it is important to consider how the contract will enable an effective incumbent to
withdraw - either through contract expiry or termination. In so doing Sutton facilitates service
continuity and minimises possible disruption to our customers. One possible recourse is to
consider forming partnerships in contract delivery to ensure that the risks of one provider
failing are mitigated by others being available to fill the gap. Keeping contracts as short as
possible enables providers to remain ‘market ready’ on standby.

21

Agenda Item 5

Page 34
APPENDIX A

One of the world’s largest providers of early years education, ABC Learning in Australia
expanded its portfolio on the basis of dubious accounting practices and was unable to pay
down rapidly accumulating debts. Going into receivership in 2008, ABC Learning left nearly
120,000 children and 16,000 child care workers without a functioning education system and
required the Australian government to step in with an £81M subsidy to keep centres open for
a further two months until an alternative provider was found. In the UK, the failure of
Southern Cross care homes was similarly problematic. In these circumstances government
is likely to retain an obligation as provider of last resort should there be a provider failure on
this scale. In both instances, due consideration was not given to the possibility of the
contract failing. By contrast Sutton insists that all services must have a clear exit strategy
that, in instances of irretrievable failure, takes into account the impact on customers, the
wider community, the provider and the market itself. That exit strategy ensures that the
transition of service provision from one supplier to another is done smoothly and with
minimal impact on Sutton’s residents.

Evaluating market mechanisms
The term ‘market mechanism’ is used to cover a set of rules and institutions of a market
economy (and, in this instance, applied to the public sector). Market mechanisms can work
to influence the delivery of either services that are supplied to the public through
arrangements such as tendering a contract, or they can influence the demand for those
services directly through such instruments as user choice, ‘vouchers’ and other forms of use
and performance related funding. According to the OECD market mechanisms can increase
the efficiency of public service delivery in three distinct ways21.
1. Improving productivity by raising the quality and lowering the cost of providing
publicly funded services
2. Improving welfare by making public providers more responsive to users preferences,
for example by devolving budgets directly to social care clients
3. Improving budget management efficiency through increased awareness of the
resource costs associated with providing public services
Currently the Council uses the following mechanisms to inform and shape the market so that
it can provide the services needed:
●

Market Position Statement - these have enabled the provider to improve productivity,
focussing on the outcomes sought after by the Council and reducing unnecessary
costs spent delivering non-essential parts of the service.

An important demand led market shaping example from Sutton revolves around
Personalised Social Care Budgets. Sutton used to have a block contract with a care
company that provided home-based support to those in need in the Borough. Sutton
decommissioned the service, channelling money instead directly to service users who were
henceforth able to choose whether to spend with the caring company or contract their own
21

Market Mechanisms in Public Service Provision, H Blochliger, Organisation of Economic
Cooperation and Development (OECD), 2008
22

Page 35

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

personal care. The majority opted to commission their own care, reporting higher levels of
satisfaction than when they were catered for by a one company providing a standardised
caring product. Higher levels of satisfaction combined with a reduction in overall expenditure
and a more diverse and resilient set of care options in the marketplace demonstrate an
effective intervention built on learning from other areas.
The OECD have found that economies of scale are often important factors in achieving
efficiency improvements. Central government support or inter-jurisdictional co-operation,
such as sharing services between Boroughs may provide the institutional size necessary to
make market mechanisms economically viable.
A more recent study by the Institute for Government22 examined the use of market
mechanisms in central and local authorities, forming the background to the development of
Sutton and IfG’s collaborative Market Development Tool outlined in Section 5(i).
Another important insight from the IfG paper in addition to the practical capability of the tool
in analysing markets, is the need to clarify our role in Sutton as market stewards as a
precursor to deploying the appropriate market mechanism to achieve our desired outcomes.
The concept of stewardship is important as we move towards creating a framework that
facilitates interaction between service users, providers and commissioners actively engaged
in shaping and developing the market. It is by definition dynamic, constantly in flux and
requires us to perform a number of different roles
●

●

●

Engaging closely with users, provider organisations and other interested parties
across the system to understand needs, objectives and enablers of successful
delivery
Setting the ‘rules of the game’ and allowing providers and users to respond to the
incentives this creates constantly monitoring the ways the market is developing and
how providers are responding to these rules, and the actions of other providers
Adjusting the rules of the game in an attempt to steer the system (much of which is,
by design, beyond their immediate control) to achieve their high-level aims.

By applying the tool to provision of the government’s Work Programme, markets for social
care, and school academies, the IfG found that the choice of market mechanism was
dependent first and foremost on historical imperatives associated with each sector.
Employment and social care were driven fundamentally by cost control considerations,
academies by quality requirements. An important lesson in an environment of reducing
budgets, where cost control was the overriding factor, the use of market mechanisms
appeared to make little difference to overall outcomes and was no substitute to adequate
funding. In all cases a clear understanding of the multiple functions of the commissioner as
a market steward with clear lines of accountability to each was more a more important factor
in achieving outcomes than any particular market mechanism. The graphic below shows the
different roles and responsibilities for commissioners in Sutton to perform in deploying any
market mechanism.

22

Making Public Sector Markets Work, Institute for Government, 2013
23

Agenda Item 5

Page 36
APPENDIX A

Addressing provider failure
Sometimes public service providers fail. In the context of public service provision failure is
taken to mean the provider:
●
●
●

not delivering service for financial reasons (financial failure);
not governing itself according to public expectations (governance failure);
not meeting an expected minimum performance standard (performance failure)

Considering failure is more important now. As we seek greater innovation in public service
delivery, the provision of better public services at lower costs, we also face concomitantly
higher risks of failure. How failure will be dealt with needs to be transparently outlined in any
contract, providing examples of instances typifying a gradual escalation and sudden, all
encompassing failure incidents and full blown crises.
When failure occurs it may often be a price to pay for innovation or it may emerge out of
effective competition, keenly priced contracts or robust contract management. At the same
time failure can bring in its wake serious consequences for services and their users
especially when they are disrupted.
The most important lesson from past failures is the need for effective contingency planning,
deciding at the outset how commissioners will respond to a failure. How will that service be
delivered if an incumbent suddenly withdraws from the contract? Is a public sector body
available in the wings to pick up the reins or another provider who will quickly assume a new
contract? Are measures in place to counteract incumbent privilege, making it viable for
competitors to step in at short notice to take over the contract? In considering which vehicle
might be deployable in reserve it is important to assess the risks associated with each option
and to understand whether the risk tolerances fall within the commissioner’s comfort zone.
Failure to do so is evident in the case of the introduction of Police and Crime Commissioners
(PCCs) in 2011. PCCs replaced unelected police authorities with elected commissioners.
Only once police and crime panels had been set up did the Home Office realise that PCCs
lacked the powers to act on information they received and lacked access to information from
police forces up and down the country. In one high profile case, Shaun Wright Police
Commissioner for Rotherham was found negligent in safeguarding children prior to
becoming commissioner. Requests for Wright to stand down could not be followed through
as the Home Office had no powers to remove him.
Risk assessment plays an important role in the inception of any contract. In considering the
likelihood of failure it is important not to assume that the new provider will shoulder all
identified risks no matter how far it is possible to have them covered in the specification.
Providers can walk away, governments cannot. In other words it is important not to be
seduced by a contract that seems to offer cast iron guarantees at unrealistically low levels of
cost. Hinchingbrooke Hospital provides a lesson in over-optimistic commissioning where the
provider Circle which won the contract to run the hospital in 2012 offered projected savings
that, as a proportion of turnover were unprecedented in the history of the NHS! It is more
often the case that, in an effort to avoid failure at any cost and the reputational damage that
24

Page 37

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

will surely follow, provider performance gradually slips below acceptable levels generating
demands for instant, unrealistic improvement in complex situations.
One way to reduce failure risk is to specify at the outset the ‘must haves’ in any contract and
take practical steps to introduce flexibility so that changes can be introduced as the contract
develops, and environments change in unpredictable ways. Over-specifying outputs can
impair contract compliance or lead to complex re-negotiated deliverables providing poor
value for money or, worse still the initiation of a complaints process, trust breakdown and
deteriorating motivational performance on the part of the provider. Likewise it is important to
put in place a transparent structure of performance measurement and oversight with clarity
over processes to escalate issues and problems, apply penalties and, in instances of
challenge, follow a course of arbitration. It is insufficient in most cases to rely upon
regulators to provide monitoring and evaluation functions to ensure contract compliance as
the failure of the Department of Health and the CQC to pick up severe problems with patient
care, quality and safety at Mid Staffordshire Hospital in 2011 showed.
Monitoring and oversight mechanisms must have built in an understanding that we are
operating in a dynamic environment.
●
●
●
●

Performance may change over time so expected minimum and maximum service
levels may change
Commissioner risk appetites may change with the need to build flexibility into a
contract
Provider failure can change incentives amongst other providers in the delivery chain,
in turn requiring a change in the type of monitoring applied
Changes in the economic environment may require different levels of monitoring
intensity to pick up on raised levels of service demand for instance.

Observations from the National Audit Office show that government has been particularly
poor in learning from failure. It is therefore important to document experiences of provider
failure starting in Sutton itself and build in ways to manage the risk of this happening again
through a more coordinated approach to delivery models. Failure may also indicate changing
levels of risk for other providers, or at the other extreme, a healthy market. In the case of the
Department for Work and Pensions Troubled Families project, the DWP was able to
determine quickly that the programme was not receiving a sufficient number of referrals to
warrant the level of spending provided by the European Social Fund. Early intervention and
project closure led to the re-allocation of funding enabling the UK government to continue
benefiting from EU support.

Stakeholder responses
In order to develop markets in Sutton services it is important to apply a number of principles
to our relationship with suppliers.
●

Sutton must create a level playing field where all potential providers no matter how
big or small are guaranteed equal and fair treatment as they consider supplying
services to the Borough.
25

Agenda Item 5

Page 38
APPENDIX A

●

●

●

Without prejudicing one potential supplier over another it is important to be as open
and transparent as possible in setting out our expectations and in preparing to
challenge and be challenged over ways of meeting them.
We have set out our approach in this document, through market consultations for
example and the involvement of service users in designing our specification,
emphasising the importance of planning in the development process.
We value early engagement with providers and service users to stretch our ambitions
before going out to tender.

26

Page 39

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Our Plan
We are committed to the following actions in order to help develop the market in a way that
best meets local need:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Ensure an Elected Member has responsibility for commissioning as part of their
portfolio.
Keep social value at the heart of our commissioning approach.
Enable local people to genuinely shape service design, including talking to suppliers.
Develop our relationship with business through our Opportunity Sutton Programme.
Encourage consortium/partnership bids for our contracts, particularly where this
enables SME’s and/or local organisations to bid.
Subject the provision of internal services to similar commissioning process and
performance management to those used when commissioning externally.
Promote the use of sustainable solutions wherever possible in our commissioning
activity and ethical initiatives such as Fairtrade.
Actively share information about the needs of our population and our commissioning
intentions with the market.
Use early market consultation to help shape provision.
Actively encourage staff to consider spinning out their service from Council control
where there is a business case to do so.
Provide opportunities to talk to the market outside of formal tending opportunities.
Publish a council-wide Market Position Statement as part of the Sutton Plan.
Draft a Communications and Engagement Plan to disseminate the key messages in
this document to our stakeholders

The table below sets out our plans to develop markets in each relevant sector:
Market Sector High Level
Outcome

Objectives

Action(s)

Date

Cross Market

Work with
partners to
explore the
benefits of a
local currency.

Develop Outline
Business Case.

Q.3 2016

Testing the
feasibility for
use of social
investment.

Submit expression of
interest for Pan-London
Edge of Care project

March
2016

Develop an
approach to
Local Giving

Develop Outline
Business Case.

Q.3 2016

Innovative
initiatives to
exploit the
market for the
benefits of
Sutton’s
residents.

27

Page 40

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A

Buildings

Good quality
accommodation/
premises for
people who want
to live/work in
Sutton

Ensure there is
sufficient
affordable
housing in
Sutton

Raise the profile
of Sutton as a
place to do
business

Create a new
development company
for house building to
compete with the
private sector.

Q.4
2015/16

Monitor applications for
housing developments
for affordable
accommodation.

Ongoing

Using our Opportunity
Sutton Programme,
market Sutton’s
commercial potential.

Ongoing

Promote Council owned
facilities available for
rent.

Ongoing

Collaborate with
partners to stimulate
interest amongst SMEs
to develop small
brownfield sites

Health &
Social Care

People in Sutton
are informed
about choices
available and
can access the
health and social
care they need.

People are
supported to
live at home for
as long as
possible.

People are able
to manage their
own care..

Q4
2018/19

Work with local
education partners to
ensure young people
have necessary skills to
enter the building trade

Q4
2018/19

Continue our focus on
commissioning home
care and supported
living solutions rather
than residential/nursing
care placements.

Ongoing

Training available to
paid carers is
accessible and
promoted to unpaid
carers.

Ongoing

People are supported to
manage their personal
budgets and can
choose a Direct
Payment if they wish.

Ongoing

Capacity remains within
the market to support

Ongoing
28

Page 41

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

people to manage their
own care.

Facilities &
Services

Business &
Finance

Capacity (including
workforce capability) is
developed locally to
offer increased choice
not just of provider but
of solution.

Ongoing

Health & social
care
interventions
are integrated
with our
partners and
are
complementary.

Services are
commissioned jointly
with Sutton Clinical
Commissioning Group
as part of our Better
Care Fund project.

Ongoing

There will be a focus on
prevention and early
intervention and
suppliers will be
incentivised where they
can demonstrate short
term intervention
leading to long term
stability.

Ongoing

Demand for
services tracked
and informs
market
consultation

Information on specific
areas where demand is
likely to increase is
shared with the market
and kept under review.

Q.4
2016/17

The Council has
all the services it
needs, provided
at a sufficient
level of quality
for the minimum
possible cost.
Opportunities are
grasped to
market in house
services where it
is prudent to do
so.

Council uses
buying power to
reduce costs
and bring in
revenues .

We will seek to share
services with other
public sector
organisations where it
makes sense to do so.

Ongoing

We will explore
opportunities for joint
ventures for the
transactional element of
these services.

Ongoing

Business and
Financial
services
provided as
above

Council uses
buying power to
reduce costs
and bring in
revenues

We will seek to share
services with other
public sector
organisations where it
makes sense to do so.

Ongoing

29

Page 42

Agenda Item 5

APPENDIX A

Transport

Education &
Leisure

23

People in Sutton
can make
journeys they
want whilst doing
so sustainably

Pupils in Sutton
enjoy and
achieve.and
people have the
opportunities
they need to
play sport and
exercise.

We will explore
opportunities for joint
ventures for the
transactional element of
these services.

Ongoing

Council
maintains the
road network
and works with
stakeholders to
design and
implement
integrated
schemes that
facilitate
sustainable
transport
choices

Ensure alignment
between the Council’s
various Transport23 and
Market Development
Strategies

Ongoing

The Council
uses a fleet of
vehicles
meeting the
highest
environmental
standards at the
least cost

Embed sustainability as
a fundamental principle
in our commissioning
framework

Schools in
Sutton maintain
their reputation
as some of the
best in the
country.

Work innovatively with
Q.3. 2016
local schools to create a
new delivery model for
school improvement
services that enables
those schools to have a
more direct role in the
provision of those
services.
Q2. 2016
Review the traded
services offer to schools
to ensure it meets their
needs as they move to
academy/free school
models.

Continue to lobby
Transport for London for
improvements to
Sutton’s public transit
services (including
tramlink) through the
Public Transport Liaison
Committee, the London
Councils Transport and
Environment
Committee.
Complete

Sustainable Transport , Cycling and Parking Strategies

30

Page 43

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Sutton’s
residents have
access to
affordable
leisure facilities.

Environmental
Services

A high quality
living and
working
environment

Develop our public
health role, integrated
with partners in the
NHS for example, to
ensure the current
provider of leisure
services continues to
deliver a high quality
service.

Ongoing

Ensure that the
authority’s forthcoming
Sports Strategy aligns
closely with this Market
Development Strategy
and contributes to part
of the work of the South
West London
Partnership and the
Wandle Valley Regional
Park

Q3
2016/17

Waste and
pollution are
dealt with
appropriately at
lowest cost.

Waste collection and
April
parts of the Park service 2017
to be procured through
(tbc)
the South London
Waste Partnership
Ongoing
Waste disposal will
continue through this
partnership and will
include the use of the
new energy recovery
facility (that then
enables the Council to
sell affordable energy to
local residents).

The ‘street
scene’ is
attractive and
valued by
residents.

Services responsible for Ongoing
maintaining an
appropriate street scene
will be commissioned
through the SLWP

Our Message
Over the coming year, we will draft details market position statements for our main
Commissioning Directorates:

31

Agenda Item 5

Page 44
APPENDIX A

●
●

People - which includes services to vulnerable adults and children as well as
educational services.
Environment, Housing & Regeneration - which includes our universal services.

However the Council’s strategic position is summarised below:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

We will apply a commissioning approach to any decision that considers how to meet
the needs of our residents
Our commissioning approach fundamentally assumes that Sutton’s people and
communities have assets that can be maintained or built upon.
We will usually commission for best value rather than lowest cost.
We welcome partners who share our commitment to co-production, sustainability and
social value.
We believe in early and ongoing engagement but we also recognise that, ultimately,
it is for the Council to decide how to best meet the needs of its residents.
We will build on our strong track record of exploring shared services or staff-led
delivery models where there is a business case to do so.
All procurement activity will be conducted through the London Tender Portal to
ensure fairness and transparency.

32

Page 45

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Appendices
APPENDIX A - Sutton Competition Policy
Sutton Council is fully committed to securing all supplies, works and services through a
thorough process of competitive tendering in order to obtain best value. The Council will,
subject to the exceptions set out below or reasons of extreme urgency require all contracts
to be publicly advertised and tendered.
The exceptions to this policy are:●
●
●
●

Where the Council already has an extant compliantly procured contract or framework
agreement.
Where supply can be obtained through an EU compliant framework agreement
established for use by public bodies by another council or public sector buying
organisation.
Contracts below £10,000. (However it is expected that officers will subject many of
these small contracts to quotation in order to prove the duty of value for money and
open more of the Council business to SME’s.)
The exemptions set out in Contract Standing Orders relating to:
●
●

where effective competition is prevented either by government control or by
the supplies or services being proprietary and/or are sold only at a fixed price;
or
solely in connection with repairs to or parts for existing vehicles, machinery,
plant or systems.

Reasoning behind the Competition Policy
The Council has adopted this policy for the following reasons:●
●
●
●
●

As a public body the Council is bound by the legislative requirements of the principles
of cross border trade and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
The increasing financial restraints on the Council mean that it needs to obtain more
for every pound spent.
Competition is recognised as a method which is successful in achieving reductions in
price and achieving value for money.
Competition facilitates the market to put forward commercial and innovative solutions
to achieve the specified outcomes
The open tendering of, in particular, smaller contracts is a major contributor to
providing opportunity for local small organisations to participate and strengthen the
local economy.

The details of the Council’s Competition requirements are set out in Contract Standing Order
62.
Implementation
The Council has adopted an electronic procurement system and all tenders and referral for
quotations will be administered through this e-tendering portal. The use of electronic
tendering has the following advantages:33

Agenda Item 5

Page 46
APPENDIX A

●
●
●
●

Tender timescales are reduced
Clarity, transparency and consistency in competition
Easy electronic access for tendering for suppliers large and small.
Automatic advertising through the London tenders Portal and contracts finder sites.

And for small tenders and Referrals for Quotation (RFQs) :●
●

Pre registered suppliers for most requirements
“Quick Quotes” for small purchases to obtain best price.

APPENDIX B - Service Sub-Categories Pie Chart 1
Buildings
●
●
●
●

Construction materials
Housing management
Construction repairs and maintenance
Horticultural

Health and Social Care
●
●
●

Healthcare
Social and Community Care
Supplies of health and social care services

Facilities and Services
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Facilities and management services
Human resources
ICT
Utilities
Catering
Consultancy
Cleaning
Mail
Legal
Stationery
Clothing
Domestic goods
Furniture and soft furnishings
Health and Safety

Business and Finance
●
●

Payment to individuals
Financial services

Transport
●
●
●

Public transport
Vehicle management
Street and traffic management
34

Page 47

Agenda Item 5
APPENDIX A

Education and Leisure
●
●
●
●

Education
Arts and Leisure
Sports
Playground equipment and maintenance

Environmental Services
●
●

Environmental services
Cemetery and Crematorium

35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Strategy & Resources Committee

Report title:

The Growth Agenda: London, the South London Partnership and the
London Borough of Sutton.

Report from:

Jessica Crowe - Executive Head, Customers, Commissioning and
Governance.

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Ruth Dombey - Leader of the Council and Chair of Strategy
& Resources Committee.
Nathan Yeowell, Strategic Policy Adviser, 020 8770 4355.

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

●
●
●
●
Open

Date:

11 April 2016

An Open Council
A Green Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council

Date:

31 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

The aim of this report is to give members an update on our work as a member of the South
London Partnership (SLP); alert them to current and proposed streams of work; to note the
overall direction of the devolution agenda in South London; and to agree our continued
approach to working within the SLP and how we might prioritise it across the council. In
addition, the recent peer challenge review of the council conducted by the Local Government
Association (LGA) suggested that the council needed to foster a greater understanding of subregional arrangements and priorities amongst members, and this paper aims to rectify that.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That members endorse the current and proposed streams of work undertaken by the SLP.

2.2

That the council continues to investigate the possibilities raised by sub-regional working - in
particular, the ability to unlock money and explore deepening partnerships with public sector
(and other) bodies.

2.3

That the council undertakes a review of scrutiny committee responsibilities to ensure that
members can better oversee and scrutinise the work of the SLP.

Agenda Item 6

Page 50

2.4

That, working with the SLP, the council reviews the sub-region’s working with the relevant Local
Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) and proposes a strategy that optimises future collaboration
between the council and the business community.

2.5

That members authorise officers to review the institutional changes that may be needed to
better equip the council to pursue this agenda and to bring back proposals as appropriate: e.g.
reconfiguration of committees and internal officer structures; extended opportunities for
members to engage in the sub-regional agenda; extended delegated authority to senior officers
on partnership bodies; extended remit for the corporate core to coordinate and drive the
council's corporate priorities; greater emphasis on place-based outcomes across the full remit of
council and other partner responsibilities; reconfiguration of the existing Corporate Plan.

3.

Background

3.1

The SLP is a sub-regional collaboration of five London boroughs: Croydon, Kingston, Merton,
Richmond and Sutton. Together, these boroughs make a significant and distinctive contribution
to London as a world city and are well positioned to contribute to wider growth opportunities in
the south east of England.

3.2

Long-standing joint working between the five boroughs was strengthened in May 2015 with the
formal establishment of a Joint Committee. The Joint Committee has statutory responsibility and
legal authority to make decisions on behalf of the sub-region, having been through the political
process of each of the five boroughs. It was established to ensure that south London is in a
position to respond to ongoing devolutionary opportunities as they arise, and to work with
central government with a single will and voice.

3.3

Cllr. Stephen Alambritis (Merton) is the current Chair of the SLP. Cllr. Dombey is the Vice-Chair.
The committee meets quarterly. Under this sovereign body there is a Chief Executives’ Board
that monitors and implements the priorities and agreed work programmes of the partnership,
supported by the Director of the SLP, Sarah Sturrock.

3.4

The partnership has established two other officer-led bodies, dedicated to promoting and
accelerating economic development, and maximising investment, where applicable. These are:
The South London Growth Board, working with the Greater London Authority (GLA), convened
by Niall Bolger (CX, Sutton); and the South London Transport Strategy Board, working with
Transport for London (TfL), convened by Roy Thompson (Joint Acting-CX, Kingston).

3.5

In May 2015, SLP agreed the following priorities:
●
●
●
●

Skills and employment;
Growth, enterprise and business support;
Transport;
Health

Page 51

4.

Agenda Item 6

Issues
4.1 There are currently four broad areas of work being undertaken by the SLP and the five
boroughs: growth (including critically assessing, planning and making the case for the
transport, housing and other infrastructure requirements for our sub-region associated with
predicted population and economic growth in London); skills and the area-based review of
post-16 educational provision; employment and complex dependency; and health and social
care integration.
4.2 Growth - under the aegis of the Growth Board, the partnership is in the process of developing
a growth proposition for the partnership which should provide the business case for our jointworking for several years to come. The partnership is the process of commissioning a scoping
study for this proposition - and is preparing a prospectus for members and officers to use in
lobbying efforts re: central government and mayoral candidates/the new administration in City
Hall.

SLP GROWTH PROPOSITION
Key objectives:
●
●
●
●
●

To build a compelling case for further devolution and investment to secure the
infrastructure and development needed to support an ambitious growth strategy for South
London;
To start work towards a model for partnership-wide working on the delivery of growth
and infrastructure needs;
To develop a strategic partnership with business and other local partners across the subregion to support sustainable growth and development;
To establish an early, strong, relationship with the new Mayor of London post-May 2016;
and
To promote the partnership and the wider needs of the sub-region to central government,
potential investors and other key influencers.

4.3 Skills and the area-based review of post-16 educational provision - the SLP is the body
convening and facilitating the area-based review of skills’ needs and provision across the five
boroughs. This nationwide initiative will provide the sub-region to plan the necessary
infrastructure, capability and capacity needed to develop and enhance the link between future
post-16 provision and economic and business needs. This review could be sensitive, as the
trajectory of current central government policy could lead to rationalisation.
4.4 The south London area-based review is earmarked to begin in August 2016; the steering
group (which Cllr. Dombey will chair) will first meet in April. The five boroughs have liaised
over this agenda for more than twelve months, and have developed good relationships across
boroughs and with sub-regional colleges, schools and other providers.
4.5 Employment support - the 2015 Spending Review allowed for the London boroughs and the
Mayor of London to jointly commission employment support (outside of the Jobcentre Plus

Agenda Item 6

Page 52

regime) to assist the long-term unemployed and those with health conditions and disabilities to
(re)enter work, i.e the new Work & Health programme for London. The SLP will engage in this
initiative and is in the process of establishing an officer group to support this work.
4.6 Health and social care integration - there is significant appetite from leaders and chief
executives to investigate the possibility of a sub-regional framework for health and social care
integration. SLP will monitor the work of the five London-based health devolution pilots that
were announced in the 2015 Spending Review (looking at health and social care integration;
health inequalities; strategic use of land and premises; prevention and integration of physical
and mental health services). A meeting took place in March 2016 between borough leaders
and CCG chairs and there was agreement to investigate potential projects for initial
collaboration.
5.

Options Considered

5.1

Option 1: withdraw or pull back from the SLP. Continued - and deepening - sub-regional working
could have an impact on other work of the council, in that it may distract efforts and resources
from local issues and priorities. All the evidence from other localities suggests that partnerships
can require significant investment of time and energy to keep them working effectively, and
often the benefits may only be felt in the very long term. Members should keep under constant
review the balance of investment over benefits accruing to Sutton, and one option would be to
withdraw or at least rein back our involvement.

5.2

Option 2: maintain our leading role and commitment to the SLP. It is considered worthwhile at
this time for the Council to maintain its strong leadership role in the continued deliberations of
the SLP, for two key reasons. Firstly it brings reputational benefits. The recent Peer Review
recognised Sutton as 'punching above its weight' in helping move the SLP forward. Secondly
and more importantly, Members should consider the opportunities that could be potentially lost if
the council chooses not to continue down this path - with particular reference to central
government’s stated policy aim of only devolving further responsibilities to local government on
a regional or sub-regional basis. If we wish to retain a strong voice on some key policy areas
(eg skills, housing and economic growth, which all have dimensions beyond our boundaries) we
need to be part of a wider grouping and the SLP gives us that access and platform.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

Cost of our ongoing membership of the SLP - currently £35,000 p.a. (previously agreed).

6.2

Staff time (accounted for in ongoing costs).
Legal

6.3

None.

Page 53

7.

Agenda Item 6

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Supplementary information on national and London-wide devolution and
growth policy

Background documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 31 March 2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Phil Butlin

Legal

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A

Report to:

Strategy & Resources

Appendix A:

The Growth Agenda: London, the South London Partnership and the
London Borough of Sutton - supplementary information on national and
London-wide devolution and growth policy.

1.

Date:

11/04/2016

Devolution and growth - the national perspective

1.1

Devolution of responsibilities and powers to local authorities has been an incremental process.
Between 2010 and 2015 the Coalition Government introduced a number of devolutionary
measures, one of the most important being the creation of Local Enterprise Partnerships
(LEPs). These are local, business-led partnerships between local authorities and businesses
and play a key role in determining and promoting local and regional economic priorities and
undertaking activities to drive economic growth and the creation of local jobs. There are 39
LEPs across England. Sutton is part of the London Enterprise Panel. (For more info, see
section 2, below.)

1.2

Outside of London, a series of city deals were agreed between 2011 and 2014. A first wave
comprising the eight Core Cities (and, with the exception of Nottingham, their wider subregions) was completed by July 2012; a further 20 deals were completed with smaller cities
and regions by July 2014. These city deals did not transfer general powers to local authorities.
Instead, they provided cities and their respective LEPs with a small amount of additional
funding to be used flexibly for specific programmes and outcomes. Some of the deals also
provided selective, additional borrowing capacity, retention of some of all of any growth in
income from business rate and greater influence over programmes formerly delivered by
Government Departments, their agencies and contractors.

1.3

A number of influential reports on devolution were published in 2014 by the likes of IPPR
North, ResPublica and the RSA, all of which proposed that local areas should take on more
powers directly linked to growing local economies and reforming public services e.g. skills,
new housing development, business support, health and social care integration. These reports
also suggested new governance models, recommended devolution to so-called combined
authorities, and argues for the prioritisation of ‘metro’ areas, as well as enhanced power over
taxes.

1.4

It was in this context that, in June 2014, the Chancellor of the Exchequer gave a speech in
Manchester in which he introduced the concept of the Northern Powerhouse as a collective
local enterprise to counterbalance the economic ascendancy of Greater London and the south
east of England.

Agenda Item 6

Page 56

APPENDIX A

1.5

Devolution developed further momentum after the Scottish independence referendum in
September 2014, with the Prime Minister declaring that alongside proposals for additional
devolution to Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland it was ‘also important we have wider civic
engagement about how to improve governance in our United Kingdom, including how to
empower our great cities.’ In November 2014 the first devolution deal was announced
between the Government and Greater Manchester (see box below for more info), followed by
deals for Sheffield, Leeds and Cornwall. Each of these deals was bespoke - the Coalition
Government having committed itself to a form of devolution predicated on local areas
requesting and bidding for extra powers and functions according to the dictates of local
political leaderships.
GREATER MANCHESTER DEVOLUTION DEAL - NOVEMBER 2014
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●

Transition to a directly-elected metro Mayor for the region from 2017;
Role of the Police and Crime Commissioner to be merged with the the office of Mayor,
who will also be responsible for the fire service;
More control of local transport, with long-term a government budget to help plan a
modernised and better connected transport system;
New planning powers to encourage regeneration and development and the creation of
a new Greater Manchester Land Commission;
A new £300m fund for housing - enough for an estimated extra 15,000 homes over ten
years;
Extra funding to help up to 50,000 people get back into work;
Incentives to skills-providers to develop more work-related training;
Extra budget to support and develop local businesses;
Control of investment through a new ‘earn back’ funding arrangement that gives
Greater Manchester Combined Authority extra money for the region’s infrastructure if it
reaches certain levels of economic growth; and
Control of long-term health and social care spending, with responsibility for the budget
from 2016/17.

1.6 Since the election of the Conservative majority Government in May 2015 there have been four
significant developments:
●

●

The Treasury invited areas to submit devolution proposals by 4 September 2015 to be
considered during the 2015 Spending Review process. 38 cities and regions put forward
bids, and deals were subsequently agreed with the North East, Tees Valley, the West
Midlands, Liverpool, and a further deal with Sheffield City Region;
During a speech to the Conservative Party Conference in October 2015, the Chancellor
outlined his plan to allow local authorities to retain 100% of business rates by 2020. Local
authorities will also have powers to reduce rates and increases will be restricted to 2p on the
rate, to be spent on infrastructure in mayoral combined authority areas that secure agreement
from their LEP;

Page 57

Agenda Item 6

APPENDIX A

●

The November 2015 Spending Review announced that local authorities dealing with social
care could apply a 2% social care precept on council tax, over and above the 2%
referendum threshold , which implies a 4% threshold for relevant authorities; and
● The Cities and Local Government Devolution Act received Royal Assent on 28 January
2016. The passage of the Act paves the way for the establishment of (directly-elected)
Mayoral Combined Authorities (MCAs), for the delivery of the devolution agreements
concluded during 2014-15, and provides the legislative basis for finalising negotiations for the
38 devolution propositions that were submitted to the treasury as part of the Spending Review
consultation in 2015.
2.
Devolution and growth - the London perspective
2.1 Greater London occupies a unique place amongst English local and regional government.
Since the creation of the Greater London Authority (GLA) in 2000, Greater London has had its
own strategic layer of governance, sitting in between central government and the 32 boroughs,
plus the City of London Corporation.
2.2 The London Enterprise Panel - the Greater London LEP - was established in February 2012. It
has tripartite membership, covering nominees from the capital’s business community;
nominees from the boroughs (organised via London Councils); and nominees from the GLA.
The Mayor of London is Chair of the LEP. Jules Pipe, the Mayor of Hackney and Chair of
London Councils, is one of the two Deputy Chairs. The panel focuses on four strategic
priorities: skills and employment; micro, small and medium-sized enterprises; digital, creative,
science and technology; and infrastructure. On top of these streams of work, the London
Panel is responsible for Further Education (FE) capital funding across Greater London, as well
as the delivery of European Structural and Investment Funds (ESIF) Programme, which will
run to 2020.
2.3 The London Finance Commission was established by the Mayor of London in July 2012 with
the remit to explore potential additional sources of revenue for the GLA. It reported in May
2013 and proposed that all property taxes within Greater London (i.e. business rates, council
tax, capital gains tax, the annual tax on enveloped dwellings and stamp duty) should be fully
devolved to London.
2.4 The London Growth Deal - Greater London negotiated a growth deal with central government
that was announced in July 2014. The deal outlined detailed spending plans for the £236m
allocated to Greater London, specifically to build London’s skills base and support local
business, help Londoners into sustainable employment (by looking into the possibilities to
integrate central and local government employment support initiatives in some claimant
categories) and improve the housing supply (through the allocation of extra New Homes
Bonus funding, an audit of central government-owned land, the allocation of extra monies via
the Affordable Rent to Buy scheme, plus a number of discrete housing agreements entered
into on a borough-by-borough basis).

Agenda Item 6

Page 58

APPENDIX A

2.5 The London Proposition and the 2015 Spending Review - As part of the Treasury's
consultation in the run-up to the 2015 Spending review, The London Proposition was
published by the Mayor of London and London Councils on 4 September 2015. It represented
a prospectus for further devolution and public sector reform on behalf of London Government.
The Proposition ‘is built around a self-financing growth and reform model which will provide
the foundations for more productive and prosperous local communities’, and is also predicated
upon a new package of freedoms and flexibilities negotiated between central government and
London Government. The Proposition set out ‘a series of inter-related reforms that London
Government wishes to deliver to provide a sustainable solution to [... tackle] deep seated
challenges’ and address the following:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Business support;
Criminal justice;
Employment and complex dependency;
Health and care devolution;
Housing; and
Skills.

2.6 The CSR saw the announcement (or confirmation and/or trailing) of the following initiatives in
response to the Proposition:
●

●

●

On employment and complex dependency, the London boroughs and the Mayor will jointly
commission employment support (outside of the Jobcentre Plus regime) to assist the longterm unemployed and those with health conditions and disabilities to (re) enter work, i.e. the
new Work & Health Programme for London;
Skills reform was announced in February 2015 and confirmed in the CSR - FE colleges will
undergo Area Based Review, undertaken on a sub-regional basis, leading to the
rationalisation of provision.
The Government has agreed a measure of health and social devolution in London, with the
announcement of five pilots (looking at health and care integration; health inequalities;
strategic use of land and premises; prevention; and integration of physical and mental health
services).

Page 59

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Housing Needs, Homelessness and Support Brokerage Services Local Authority Trading Company (‘LATC’)

Report from:

Mary Morrissey – Strategic Director Environment, Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council
Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair, Housing, Economy and Business
Committee
Councillor Colin Stears, Chair, Adult Social Services and Health
Committee

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Lorraine Thomas, Housing Needs, Homelessness Prevention &
Support Brokerage Service Manager, 020 8770 5794

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Exempt:

●
●
●
●

Date:

11 April 2016

An Open Council
A Green Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

31 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

This report sets out proposals for the governance arrangements for the Council and the LATC
and its support service subsidiary and formally recommends the setting up of the Shareholder
Board in the Council’s constitution.

2.

Recommendations

That the Strategy and Resources Committee:
2.1

Agrees to delegate powers to the Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee to act as the
Shareholder Board for the LATC.

2.2

Notes the indicative framework of the LATC company documentation set out in the report and
agrees to delegate to the Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee the finalisation of all

Agenda Item 7

Page 60

documentation as necessary, including the articles of association, shareholder’s agreement,
commissioning agreement and the service level agreements for ‘back-office’ services.
2.3

Agrees to delegate the establishment of a support service subsidiary and approvals incidental to
the setting up of the subsidiary to the Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee.

2.4

Notes the amendment to the governance structure in relation to the directors of the LATC as set
out in paragraph 4.3 and agrees to appoint the following to sit on the LATC Executive
Committee: Simon Latham, non-executive director (LBS Internal), Nick Ireland, non-executive
director (LBS internal), Michael Mackie, non-executive director (LBS internal), Roger Mills, nonexecutive director (external), 1 x non-executive director (external, to be appointed) 1 x LATC
executive director (to be appointed).

3.

Background

3.1

On 14th December 2015, members of the Strategy and Resources Committee approved a
business plan which will result in the transfer of housing needs, homeless, support planning,
support brokerage and Shared Lives services to a Local Authority Trading Company.

3.2

The power to trade allows the Council to pursue a strategy of commercial trading and increase
income to meet challenging financial targets. The Council can use a number of powers that
have been granted, namely:
●
●
●

Section 95 of the Local Government Act 2003;
the Local Government (Best Value Authorities Power to Trade England) Order 2009; and
the powers provided by the Localism Act 2011 through the general power of competence.

3.3

It was also agreed at the Strategy and Resources Committee on 14th December that a support
service subsidiary would be established to deliver the Shared Lives and Support Brokerage
functions transferred to the LATC, to ensure the most advantageous VAT structure. Services
regulated by CQC are VAT exempt and therefore in a single structure Company, it would not be
possible to reclaim the VAT incurred on regulated services.

4.

Overall Governance Structure

4.1

The Strategy and Resources Committee on 14th December 2015 agreed the overall governance
and reporting structure of the company and this report now recommends formally the
establishment of a Shareholder Board and an indicative framework of its structures and
governance.

4.2

This report proposes that the Directors of the LATC Executive Board, as originally approved by
Strategy and Resources Committee on 14th December 2015, are amended in line with the
diagram below.

Page 61

4.3

LATC Governance Structure:

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7

Page 62

5.

LATC Sub-Committee

5.1

The Council will be the named sole shareholder for the LATC. Strategy and Resources
Committee on 14th December 2015 approved that a Shareholder Board be established as a
sub-committee of Strategy and Resources Committee. It is proposed that the Shareholder
Board is governed by the terms of reference set out below and in Appendix A.

5.2

There are two options for the proposed Shareholder Board Sub-Committee: firstly that it is the
existing Opportunity Sutton Limited Shareholder Sub-Committee, or secondly that a new
Shareholder Sub-Committee is established.

5.3

The recommended option is for the LATC’s Shareholder Board to be the existing Opportunity
Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee. The Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee is a sub-committee of
the Strategy and Resources Committee and comprises five elected Members. Membership is
politically proportionate.

5.4

The purpose of the Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee is:
1. To make decisions that are reserved matters for the shareholder board.
2. To exercise control as owners of the company and its subsidiaries in the development and
agreement of their strategic direction, operational and investment parameters, business plans
and all other matters.
3. To consider proposals that might be outside of the agreed operational parameters and
business plans.
4. To exercise oversight on performance and progress against business plans and to receive
periodic reports on such matters including annual reports.
5. To exercise oversight on decision making and assurance that the statutory functions of the
companies are being properly discharged.

6.

Establishment of the Company

6.1

The LATC is in the process of being set up prior to being registered as a company. It has been
agreed that the LATC will have an initial shareholding of one (1) share, with a nominal value of
£1, and the London Borough of Sutton named as the sole shareholder.

6.2

The LATC will be governed by the following documents and the indicative content and
framework of these are set out below:
●
Shareholder Agreement
●
Articles of Association
●
Business Plan
●
Operational Policies
Shareholder Agreement

6.3

The Shareholder Agreement covers the legal arrangement between the Council and the LATC.
The key areas are outlined below:

Page 63

Section
Conduct of the Company’s
Affairs

Schedule 1 - Shareholder
Consent matters (Reserved
Matters) (See Appendix A for
draft standard matters)

6.4

Agenda Item 7

Content
● Frequency of Board meetings – no less than quarterly,
with no more than 3 month intervals.
● Relationship with Shareholders and requirement to
seek Shareholder consent for matters set out in
Schedule 1.
● These matters set out those areas where the Board
needs to refer to the LATC Sub Committee for a
decision, for instance termination, variation, forming a
subsidiary company or engaging in any business other
than as contemplated by the Business Plan.

The proposed matters that require Shareholder Consent (Reserved Matters) are set out in
Appendix A. These matters are likely to develop as the requirement of the LATC develops,
therefore in accordance with recommendation 2, it is recommended that the reserved matters
will be delegated to be finalised as part of the Shareholder’s Agreement.
Memorandum and Articles of Association

6.5

The Memorandum and Articles of Association set out the rules company officers must follow
when running the company. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the LATC are
proposed to be the model form articles further to the Companies Act 2006. The Articles of
Association cover five main areas:
Section
Interpretation and limitation of
liability
Directors

Shares and Distributions
Decision making by
shareholders
Administrative arrangements

6.6

6.7

Content
● Defined terms
● Liability of members
● Directors’ powers and responsibilities
● Decision-making by Directors
● Process for Director appointments
● Shares
● Dividends and other distributions
● Organisation of general meetings
● Voting at general meetings
● Administrative arrangements e.g. communications,
company seal
● Directors’ indemnity and insurance
● Appointment of auditors for the LATC

The Model Articles of Association are set out in Appendix B and may require amendment in
order to reflect the finally settled position. It is recommended that agreement of the finalised
document is delegated to the Opportunity Sutton Ltd Sub-Committee in accordance with
recommendation 2.
Business Plan
The Business Plan was approved by Strategy and Resources Committee on 14th December 2015.

Agenda Item 7

Page 64

Operational Policies
6.8 The company will also have operational policies to cover its administration and
Management. There are a number of operational policies relevant to the LATC that will require
approval by the LATC Sub-Committee. These include:
●
Data protection policy
●
Risk management policy
●
Health and safety policy
●
Financial regulations
●
Procurement policy
7.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

7.1

There are legal costs of approximately £40,000 involved in setting up the company and
drafting the necessary documentation. These will be contained within existing project budgets.
Legal

7.2

Legal advice has been provided to the Council in respect of the specialist nature of the
company formation and the variety of agreements which are set out in the report.

7.3

The LATC is a company that falls under Regulations 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (“Teckal”), which allows the LATC to take advantage of the in-house exemption and, as
such, any contracts let between the Council and the LATC would not be subject to the EU
Procurement regime.

7.4

Establishing the LATC Sub-Committee with Members of the Council demonstrates an element
of control over the LATC by the Council, which is one of the elements required to satisfy the
Teckal exemption.
Risk

7.5

There is inherently a level of risk involved in transferring public services to a Local Authority
Trading Company. However, robust governance and reporting arrangements set out in this
report illustrate how risks will be managed transparently at different levels of the organisation.
These measures will be underpinned by a having in place a risk register which identifies key
risks and mitigation measures as appropriate. Liability caps and insurance will also be put in
place to limit any risk exposure.

8.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Draft Shareholder Consent Matters – Reserved Decisions

B

Model Articles of Association

Page 65

Agenda Item 7

Background Documents
Strategy and Resources Committee Report dated 14th December 2015: A New Delivery Model
for Housing Needs, Homelessness and Support Brokerage Services - Local Authority Trading
Company Business Plan

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal
Strategic Business

Date: 31 March 2016

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Sue Hogg
Susan Moussa
Tom Alexander

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 67

Agenda Item 7

APPENDIX A – Draft Shareholder Consent Matters – Reserved Decisions
The reserved matters shall be as set out in the Shareholder’s Agreement.
The reserved matters proposed as follows (these are subject to amendment):
Schedule 1

Mattes reserved for shareholder approval

The Company shall not, unless it has Shareholder Consent:
1

Altering in any respect the Articles or the rights attaching to any of the shares in
Encompass (except as provided in clause Error! Reference source not found. of the
agreement).

2

Permitting the registration of any person as a member of Encompass other than the
parties in relation to their initial investment [and any permitted transferees].

3

Increasing the amount of Encompass's issued share capital [except as provided in
this Agreement], granting any option or other interest (in the form of convertible
securities or in any other form) over or in its share capital, redeeming or purchasing
any of its own shares or effecting any other reorganisation of its share capital.

4

[Incurring expenditure in excess of £[ 150,000].

5

[Issuing any loan capital in Encompass or entering into any commitment with any
person with respect to the issue of any loan capital.]

6

Making any borrowing [other than [the initial loan for working capital purposes] [from
its bankers in the ordinary and usual course of business]].]

7

Applying for the listing or trading of any shares or debt securities on any stock
exchange or market.

8

Passing any resolution for its winding up or presenting any petition for its
administration [other than in accordance with this Agreement] (unless it has become
insolvent).

9

Altering the name of Encompass [or its registered office].

10

Adopting or amending the Business Plan in respect of each Financial Year.

11

Changing the nature of Encompass's Business or commencing any new business by
NCOMPASS which is not ancillary or incidental to the Business.

12

Forming any Subsidiary or acquiring shares in any other company or participating in
any partnership or joint venture (incorporated or not).

Agenda Item 7

Page 68

13

Amalgamating or merging with any other company or business undertaking.

14

Making any acquisition or disposal by Encompass of any material asset(s) [otherwise
than in the ordinary course of business].

15

Creating or granting any Encumbrance over the whole or any part of the Business,
undertaking or assets of Encompass or over any shares in Encompass or agreeing to
do so [other than liens arising in the ordinary course of business or any charge
arising by the operation or purported operation of title retention clauses and in the
ordinary course of business].

16

Making any loan (otherwise than by way of deposit with a bank or other institution the
normal business of which includes the acceptance of deposits or in the ordinary
course of business) or granting any credit (other than in the normal course of trading)
or giving any guarantee (other than in the normal course of trading) or indemnity.

17

[Altering any mandate given to Encompass's bankers relating to any matter
concerning the operation of Encompass's bank accounts [other than by the
substitution of any person nominated as a signatory by the party entitled to make
such nomination].]

18

[Appointing any agent or other intermediary to conduct any of Encompass's
Business.]

19

Entering into any procurement, arrangement, contract or transaction [outside the
normal course of its business or otherwise than on arm's length terms] or [in excess
of £[ 150,000]
]].

20

Giving notice of termination of any arrangements, contracts or transactions which are
material in the nature of Encompass's Business, or materially varying any such
arrangements, contracts or transactions.

21

[Adopting or amending any standard terms of business (including prices) on which
Encompass is prepared to provide goods or services to third parties.]

22

[Granting any rights (by licence or otherwise) in or over any intellectual property
owned or used by Encompass.]

23

[Factoring or assigning any of the book debts of [LATC].]

24

Changing the auditors of Encompass or its Financial Year end.

25

Making or permitting to be made any [material] change in the accounting policies and
principles adopted by Encompass in the preparation of its audited [and management]
accounts [except as may be required to ensure compliance with relevant accounting
standards under the Act or any other generally accepted accounting principles in the
United Kingdom].

Page 69

Agenda Item 7

26

[Dealing with any surpluses of Encompass.]

27

[Declaring or paying any dividend that exceeds in any year [MAXIMUM
PERCENTAGE]% of Encompass's post-tax distributable profits as shown by the
audited accounts for that year, or making any other distribution (by way of
capitalisation, repayment or in any other manner) out of [LATC]'s distributable profits
or any of its reserves [other than a dividend on the Council’s shares].]

28

Establishing or amending any profit-sharing, share option, bonus or other incentive
scheme of any nature for directors or employees.

29

Establishing or amending any pension scheme or granting any pension rights to any
director, officer, employee, former director, officer or employee, or any member of
any such person's family.

30

Dismissing [any director,] officer or employee in circumstances in which Encompass
incurs or agrees to bear redundancy or other costs in excess of £[50,000] in total] OR
[Appointing or dismissing any director]

31

Agreeing to remunerate (by payment of fees, the provision of benefits-in-kind or
otherwise) any officer of, or consultant to, Encompass at a rate in excess of
£[AMOUNT] per annum or increasing the remuneration of any such person to a rate
in excess of £[AMOUNT] per annum.

32

Entering into or varying any contract of employment providing for the payment of
remuneration (including pension and other benefits) in excess of a rate of
£[AMOUNT] per annum or increasing the remuneration of any staff (including
pension and other benefits) to a rate in excess of £[AMOUNT] per annum.

33

Instituting, settling or compromising any [material] legal proceedings (other than debt
recovery proceedings in the ordinary course of business) instituted or threatened
against Encompass or submitting to arbitration or alternative dispute resolution any
dispute involving Encompass.

34

Making any agreement with any revenue or tax authorities or making any claim,
disclaimer, election or consent exceeding £[AMOUNT] for tax purposes in relation to
Encompass or its business.

Page 70

Agenda Item 7

APPENDIX B – Model Articles of Association

SCHEDULE 1

Regulation 2

MODEL ARTICLES FOR PRIVATE COMPANIES LIMITED BY
SHARES
INDEX TO THE ARTICLES
PART 1
INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
1. Defined terms
2. Liability of members

PART 2
DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS’ POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
3. Directors’ general authority
4. Shareholders’ reserve power
5. Directors may delegate
6. Committees
DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS
7. Directors to take decisions collectively
8. Unanimous decisions
9. Calling a directors’ meeting
10. Participation in directors’ meetings
11. Quorum for directors’ meetings
12. Chairing of directors’ meetings
13. Casting vote
14. Conflicts of interest
15. Records of decisions to be kept
16. Directors’ discretion to make further rules
APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
17. Methods of appointing directors
18. Termination of director’s appointment
19. Directors’ remuneration
20. Directors’ expenses

PART 3
SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS
SHARES
21. All shares to be fully paid up
22. Powers to issue different classes of share
23. Company not bound by less than absolute interests

Page 71

24. Share certificates
25. Replacement share certificates
26. Share transfers
27. Transmission of shares
28. Exercise of transmittees’ rights
29. Transmittees bound by prior notices
DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS
30. Procedure for declaring dividends
31. Payment of dividends and other distributions
32. No interest on distributions
33. Unclaimed distributions
34. Non-cash distributions
35. Waiver of distributions
CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
36. Authority to capitalise and appropriation of capitalised sums

PART 4
DECISION-MAKING BY SHAREHOLDERS
ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS
37. Attendance and speaking at general meetings
38. Quorum for general meetings
39. Chairing general meetings
40. Attendance and speaking by directors and non-shareholders
41. Adjournment
VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS
42. Voting: general
43. Errors and disputes
44. Poll votes
45. Content of proxy notices
46. Delivery of proxy notices
47. Amendments to resolutions

PART 5
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
48. Means of communication to be used
49. Company seals
50. No right to inspect accounts and other records
51. Provision for employees on cessation of business
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
52. Indemnity
53. Insurance

Agenda Item 7

Page 72

Agenda Item 7

PART 1
INTERPRETATION AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
Defined terms
1. In the articles, unless the context requires otherwise—
“articles” means the company’s articles of association;
“bankruptcy” includes individual insolvency proceedings in a jurisdiction other than
England and Wales or Northern Ireland which have an effect similar to that of
bankruptcy;
“chairman” has the meaning given in article 12;
“chairman of the meeting” has the meaning given in article 39;
“Companies Acts” means the Companies Acts (as defined in section 2 of the
Companies Act 2006), in so far as they apply to the company;
“director” means a director of the company, and includes any person occupying the
position of director, by whatever name called;
“distribution recipient” has the meaning given in article 31;
“document” includes, unless otherwise specified, any document sent or supplied in
electronic form;
“electronic form” has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Companies Act 2006;
“fully paid” in relation to a share, means that the nominal value and any premium to be
paid to the company in respect of that share have been paid to the company;
“hard copy form” has the meaning given in section 1168 of the Companies Act 2006;
“holder” in relation to shares means the person whose name is entered in the register of
members as the holder of the shares;
“instrument” means a document in hard copy form;
“ordinary resolution” has the meaning given in section 282 of the Companies Act 2006;
“paid” means paid or credited as paid;
“participate”, in relation to a directors’ meeting, has the meaning given in article 10;
“proxy notice” has the meaning given in article 45;
“shareholder” means a person who is the holder of a share;
“shares” means shares in the company;
“special resolution” has the meaning given in section 283 of the Companies Act 2006;
“subsidiary” has the meaning given in section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006;
“transmittee” means a person entitled to a share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of
a
shareholder or otherwise by operation of law; and

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

“writing” means the representation or reproduction of words, symbols or other
information in a visible form by any method or combination of methods, whether sent or
supplied in electronic form or otherwise.
Unless the context otherwise requires, other words or expressions contained in these
articles bear the same meaning as in the Companies Act 2006 as in force on the date when
these articles become binding on the company.
Liability of members
2. The liability of the members is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on the shares held
by them.

PART 2
DIRECTORS
DIRECTORS’ POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
Directors’ general authority
3. Subject to the articles, the directors are responsible for the management of the company’s
business, for which purpose they may exercise all the powers of the company.
Shareholders’ reserve power
4.—(1) The shareholders may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or refrain
from taking, specified action.
(2) No such special resolution invalidates anything which the directors have done before
the passing of the resolution.
Directors may delegate
5.—(1) Subject to the articles, the directors may delegate any of the powers which are
conferred on them under the articles—
(a) to such person or committee;
(b) by such means (including by power of attorney);
(c) to such an extent;
(d) in relation to such matters or territories; and
(e) on such terms and conditions;
as they think fit.
(2) If the directors so specify, any such delegation may authorise further delegation of the
directors’ powers by any person to whom they are delegated.
(3) The directors may revoke any delegation in whole or part, or alter its terms and
conditions.
Committees
6.—(1) Committees to which the directors delegate any of their powers must follow
procedures which are based as far as they are applicable on those provisions of the articles
which govern the taking of decisions by directors.
(2) The directors may make rules of procedure for all or any committees, which prevail
over rules derived from the articles if they are not consistent with them.

Page 74

Agenda Item 7

DECISION-MAKING BY DIRECTORS
Directors to take decisions collectively
7.—(1) The general rule about decision-making by directors is that any decision of the
directors must be either a majority decision at a meeting or a decision taken in accordance
with article 8.
(2) If—
(a) the company only has one director, and
(b) no provision of the articles requires it to have more than one director,
the general rule does not apply, and the director may take decisions without regard to any of
the provisions of the articles relating to directors’ decision-making.
Unanimous decisions
8.—(1) A decision of the directors is taken in accordance with this article when all eligible
directors indicate to each other by any means that they share a common view on a matter.
(2) Such a decision may take the form of a resolution in writing, copies of which have been
signed by each eligible director or to which each eligible director has otherwise indicated
agreement in writing.
(3) References in this article to eligible directors are to directors who would have been
entitled to vote on the matter had it been proposed as a resolution at a directors’ meeting.
(4) A decision may not be taken in accordance with this article if the eligible directors would
not have formed a quorum at such a meeting.
Calling a directors’ meeting
9.—(1) Any director may call a directors’ meeting by giving notice of the meeting to the
directors or by authorising the company secretary (if any) to give such notice.
(2) Notice of any directors’ meeting must indicate—
(a) its proposed date and time;
(b) where it is to take place; and
(c) if it is anticipated that directors participating in the meeting will not be in the same
place, how it is proposed that they should communicate with each other during the
meeting.
(3) Notice of a directors’ meeting must be given to each director, but need not be in writing.
(4) Notice of a directors’ meeting need not be given to directors who waive their entitlement
to notice of that meeting, by giving notice to that effect to the company not more than 7 days
after the date on which the meeting is held. Where such notice is given after the meeting has
been held, that does not affect the validity of the meeting, or of any business conducted at it.
Participation in directors’ meetings
10.—(1) Subject to the articles, directors participate in a directors’ meeting, or part of a
directors’ meeting, when—
(a) the meeting has been called and takes place in accordance with the articles, and
(b) they can each communicate to the others any information or opinions they have on
any particular item of the business of the meeting.
(2) In determining whether directors are participating in a directors’ meeting, it is irrelevant
where any director is or how they communicate with each other.
(3) If all the directors participating in a meeting are not in the same place, they may decide
that the meeting is to be treated as taking place wherever any of them is.
Quorum for directors’ meetings

Page 75

Agenda Item 7

11.—(1) At a directors’ meeting, unless a quorum is participating, no proposal is to be voted
on, except a proposal to call another meeting.
(2) The quorum for directors’ meetings may be fixed from time to time by a decision of the
directors, but it must never be less than two, and unless otherwise fixed it is two.
(3) If the total number of directors for the time being is less than the quorum required, the
directors must not take any decision other than a decision—
(a) to appoint further directors, or
(b) to call a general meeting so as to enable the shareholders to appoint further
directors.
Chairing of directors’ meetings
12.—(1) The directors may appoint a director to chair their meetings.
(2) The person so appointed for the time being is known as the chairman.
(3) The directors may terminate the chairman’s appointment at any time.
(4) If the chairman is not participating in a directors’ meeting within ten minutes of the time at
which it was to start, the participating directors must appoint one of themselves to chair it.
Casting vote
13.—(1) If the numbers of votes for and against a proposal are equal, the chairman or other
director chairing the meeting has a casting vote.
(2) But this does not apply if, in accordance with the articles, the chairman or other director is
not to be counted as participating in the decision-making process for quorum or voting
purposes.
Conflicts of interest
14.—(1) If a proposed decision of the directors is concerned with an actual or proposed
transaction or arrangement with the company in which a director is interested, that director is
not to be counted as participating in the decision-making process for quorum or voting
purposes.
(2) But if paragraph (3) applies, a director who is interested in an actual or proposed
transaction or arrangement with the company is to be counted as participating in the
decision-making process for quorum and voting purposes.
(3) This paragraph applies when—
(a) the company by ordinary resolution disapplies the provision of the articles which
would otherwise prevent a director from being counted as participating in the decisionmaking process;
(b) the director’s interest cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to a
conflict of interest; or
(c) the director’s conflict of interest arises from a permitted cause.
(4) For the purposes of this article, the following are permitted causes—
(a) a guarantee given, or to be given, by or to a director in respect of an obligation
incurred by or on behalf of the company or any of its subsidiaries;
(b) subscription, or an agreement to subscribe, for shares or other securities of the
company or any of its subsidiaries, or to underwrite, sub-underwrite, or guarantee
subscription for any such shares or securities; and
(c) arrangements pursuant to which benefits are made available to employees and
directors or former employees and directors of the company or any of its subsidiaries
which do not provide special benefits for directors or former directors.
(5) For the purposes of this article, references to proposed decisions and decision-making
processes include any directors’ meeting or part of a directors’ meeting.
(6) Subject to paragraph (7), if a question arises at a meeting of directors or of a committee
of directors as to the right of a director to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting)

Page 76

Agenda Item 7

for voting or quorum purposes, the question may, before the conclusion of the meeting, be
referred to the chairman whose ruling in relation to any director other than the chairman is to
be final and conclusive.
(7) If any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) should
arise in respect of the chairman, the question is to be decided by a decision of the directors
at that meeting, for which purpose the chairman is not to be counted as participating in the
meeting (or that part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.
Records of decisions to be kept
15. The directors must ensure that the company keeps a record, in writing, for at least 10
years from the date of the decision recorded, of every unanimous or majority decision taken
by the directors.
Directors’ discretion to make further rules
16. Subject to the articles, the directors may make any rule which they think fit about how
they take decisions, and about how such rules are to be recorded or communicated to
directors.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Methods of appointing directors
17.—(1) Any person who is willing to act as a director, and is permitted by law to do so, may
be appointed to be a director—
(a) by ordinary resolution, or
(b) by a decision of the directors.
(2) In any case where, as a result of death, the company has no shareholders and no
directors, the personal representatives of the last shareholder to have died have the right, by
notice in writing, to appoint a person to be a director.
(3) For the purposes of paragraph (2), where 2 or more shareholders die in circumstances
rendering it uncertain who was the last to die, a younger shareholder is deemed to have
survived an older shareholder.
Termination of director’s appointment
18. A person ceases to be a director as soon as—
(a) that person ceases to be a director by virtue of any provision of the Companies Act
2006 or is prohibited from being a director by law;
(b) a bankruptcy order is made against that person;
(c) a composition is made with that person’s creditors generally in satisfaction of that
person’s debts;
(d) a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person gives a written opinion to
the company stating that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of
acting as a director and may remain so for more than three months;
(e) [paragraph omitted pursuant to The Mental Health (Discrimination) Act 2013]
(f) notification is received by the company from the director that the director is resigning
from office, and such resignation has taken effect in accordance with its terms.
Directors’ remuneration
19.—(1) Directors may undertake any services for the company that the directors decide.

Page 77

Agenda Item 7

(2) Directors are entitled to such remuneration as the directors determine—
(a) for their services to the company as directors, and
(b) for any other service which they undertake for the company.
(3) Subject to the articles, a director’s remuneration may—
(a) take any form, and
(b) include any arrangements in connection with the payment of a pension, allowance or
gratuity, or any death, sickness or disability benefits, to or in respect of that director.
(4) Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors’ remuneration accrues from day to day.
(5) Unless the directors decide otherwise, directors are not accountable to the company for
any remuneration which they receive as directors or other officers or employees of the
company’s subsidiaries or of any other body corporate in which the company is interested.
Directors’ expenses
20. The company may pay any reasonable expenses which the directors properly incur in
connection with their attendance at—
(a) meetings of directors or committees of directors,
(b) general meetings, or
(c) separate meetings of the holders of any class of shares or of debentures of the
company, or otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge
of their responsibilities in relation to the company.

PART 3
SHARES AND DISTRIBUTIONS
SHARES

All shares to be fully paid up
21.—(1) No share is to be issued for less than the aggregate of its nominal value and any
premium to be paid to the company in consideration for its issue.
(2) This does not apply to shares taken on the formation of the company by the subscribers
to the company’s memorandum.
Powers to issue different classes of share
22.—(1) Subject to the articles, but without prejudice to the rights attached to any existing
share, the company may issue shares with such rights or restrictions as may be determined
by ordinary resolution.
(2) The company may issue shares which are to be redeemed, or are liable to be redeemed
at the option of the company or the holder, and the directors may determine the terms,
conditions and manner of redemption of any such shares.
Company not bound by less than absolute interests
23. Except as required by law, no person is to be recognised by the company as holding any
share upon any trust, and except as otherwise required by law or the articles, the company
is not in any way to be bound by or recognise any interest in a share other than the holder’s
absolute ownership of it and all the rights attaching to it.
Share certificates

Agenda Item 7

Page 78

24.—(1) The company must issue each shareholder, free of charge, with one or more
certificates in respect of the shares which that shareholder holds.
(2) Every certificate must specify—
(a) in respect of how many shares, of what class, it is issued;
(b) the nominal value of those shares;
(c) that the shares are fully paid; and
(d) any distinguishing numbers assigned to them.
(3) No certificate may be issued in respect of shares of more than one class.
(4) If more than one person holds a share, only one certificate may be issued in respect of it.
(5) Certificates must—
(a) have affixed to them the company’s common seal, or
(b) be otherwise executed in accordance with the Companies Acts.
Replacement share certificates
25.—(1) If a certificate issued in respect of a shareholder’s shares is—
(a) damaged or defaced, or
(b) said to be lost, stolen or destroyed, that shareholder is entitled to be issued with a
replacement certificate in respect of the same shares.
(2) A shareholder exercising the right to be issued with such a replacement certificate—
(a) may at the same time exercise the right to be issued with a single certificate or
separate certificates;
(b) must return the certificate which is to be replaced to the company if it is damaged or
defaced; and
(c) must comply with such conditions as to evidence, indemnity and the payment of a
reasonable fee as the directors decide.
Share transfers
26.—(1) Shares may be transferred by means of an instrument of transfer in any usual form
or any other form approved by the directors, which is executed by or on behalf of the
transferor.
(2) No fee may be charged for registering any instrument of transfer or other document
relating to or affecting the title to any share.
(3) The company may retain any instrument of transfer which is registered.
(4) The transferor remains the holder of a share until the transferee’s name is entered in the
register of members as holder of it.
(5) The directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share, and if they do so, the
instrument of transfer must be returned to the transferee with the notice of refusal unless
they suspect that the proposed transfer may be fraudulent.
Transmission of shares
27.—(1) If title to a share passes to a transmittee, the company may only recognise the
transmittee as having any title to that share.
(2) A transmittee who produces such evidence of entitlement to shares as the directors may
properly require—
(a) may, subject to the articles, choose either to become the holder of those shares or to
have them transferred to another person, and
(b) subject to the articles, and pending any transfer of the shares to another person, has
the same rights as the holder had.
(3) But transmittees do not have the right to attend or vote at a general meeting, or agree to
a proposed written resolution, in respect of shares to which they are entitled, by reason of

Page 79

Agenda Item 7

the holder’s death or bankruptcy or otherwise, unless they become the holders of those
shares.
Exercise of transmittees’ rights
28.—(1) Transmittees who wish to become the holders of shares to which they have become
entitled must notify the company in writing of that wish.
(2) If the transmittee wishes to have a share transferred to another person, the transmittee
must execute an instrument of transfer in respect of it.
(3) Any transfer made or executed under this article is to be treated as if it were made or
executed by the person from whom the transmittee has derived rights in respect of the
share, and as if the event which gave rise to the transmission had not occurred.
Transmittees bound by prior notices
29. If a notice is given to a shareholder in respect of shares and a transmittee is entitled to
those shares, the transmittee is bound by the notice if it was given to the shareholder before
the transmittee’s name has been entered in the register of members.

DIVIDENDS AND OTHER DISTRIBUTIONS
Procedure for declaring dividends
30.—(1) The company may by ordinary resolution declare dividends, and the directors may
decide to pay interim dividends.
(2) A dividend must not be declared unless the directors have made a recommendation as to
its amount. Such a dividend must not exceed the amount recommended by the directors.
(3) No dividend may be declared or paid unless it is in accordance with shareholders’
respective rights.
(4) Unless the shareholders’ resolution to declare or directors’ decision to pay a dividend, or
the terms on which shares are issued, specify otherwise, it must be paid by reference to
each shareholder’s holding of shares on the date of the resolution or decision to declare or
pay it.
(5) If the company’s share capital is divided into different classes, no interim dividend may
be paid on shares carrying deferred or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrear.
(6) The directors may pay at intervals any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to
them that the profits available for distribution justify the payment.
(7) If the directors act in good faith, they do not incur any liability to the holders of shares
conferring preferred rights for any loss they may suffer by the lawful payment of an interim
dividend on shares with deferred or non-preferred rights.
Payment of dividends and other distributions
31.—(1) Where a dividend or other sum which is a distribution is payable in respect of a
share, it must be paid by one or more of the following means—
(a) transfer to a bank or building society account specified by the distribution recipient
either in writing or as the directors may otherwise decide;
(b) sending a cheque made payable to the distribution recipient by post to the
distribution recipient at the distribution recipient’s registered address (if the distribution
recipient is a holder of the share), or (in any other case) to an address specified by the
distribution recipient either in writing or as the directors may otherwise decide;
(c) sending a cheque made payable to such person by post to such person at such
address as the distribution recipient has specified either in writing or as the directors
may otherwise decide; or

Agenda Item 7

Page 80

(d) any other means of payment as the directors agree with the distribution recipient
either in writing or by such other means as the directors decide.
(2) In the articles, “the distribution recipient” means, in respect of a share in respect of which
a dividend or other sum is payable—
(a) the holder of the share; or
(b) if the share has two or more joint holders, whichever of them is named first in the
register of members; or
(c) if the holder is no longer entitled to the share by reason of death or bankruptcy, or
otherwise by operation of law, the transmittee.
No interest on distributions
32. The company may not pay interest on any dividend or other sum payable in respect of a
share unless otherwise provided by—
(a) the terms on which the share was issued, or
(b) the provisions of another agreement between the holder of that share and the
company.
Unclaimed distributions
33.—(1) All dividends or other sums which are—
(a) payable in respect of shares, and
(b) unclaimed after having been declared or become payable,
may be invested or otherwise made use of by the directors for the benefit of the
company until claimed.
(2) The payment of any such dividend or other sum into a separate account does not make
the company a trustee in respect of it.
(3) If—
(a) twelve years have passed from the date on which a dividend or other sum became
due for payment, and
(b) the distribution recipient has not claimed it,
the distribution recipient is no longer entitled to that dividend or other sum and it ceases to
remain owing by the company.
Non-cash distributions
34.—(1) Subject to the terms of issue of the share in question, the company may, by
ordinary resolution on the recommendation of the directors, decide to pay all or part of a
dividend or other distribution payable in respect of a share by transferring non-cash assets of
equivalent value (including, without limitation, shares or other securities in any company).
(2) For the purposes of paying a non-cash distribution, the directors may make whatever
arrangements they think fit, including, where any difficulty arises regarding the distribution—
(a) fixing the value of any assets;
(b) paying cash to any distribution recipient on the basis of that value in order to adjust
the rights of recipients; and
(c) vesting any assets in trustees.
Waiver of distributions
35. Distribution recipients may waive their entitlement to a dividend or other distribution
payable in respect of a share by giving the company notice in writing to that effect, but if—
(a) the share has more than one holder, or
(b) more than one person is entitled to the share, whether by reason of the death or
bankruptcy of one or more joint holders, or otherwise,
the notice is not effective unless it is expressed to be given, and signed, by all the holders or
persons otherwise entitled to the share.

Page 81

Agenda Item 7

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS
Authority to capitalise and appropriation of capitalised sums
36.—(1) Subject to the articles, the directors may, if they are so authorised by an ordinary
resolution—
(a) decide to capitalise any profits of the company (whether or not they are available for
distribution) which are not required for paying a preferential dividend, or any sum
standing to the credit of the company’s share premium account or capital redemption
reserve; and
(b) appropriate any sum which they so decide to capitalise (a “capitalised sum”) to the
persons who would have been entitled to it if it were distributed by way of dividend (the
“persons entitled”) and in the same proportions.
(2) Capitalised sums must be applied—
(a) on behalf of the persons entitled, and
(b) in the same proportions as a dividend would have been distributed to them.
(3) Any capitalised sum may be applied in paying up new shares of a nominal amount equal
to the capitalised sum which are then allotted credited as fully paid to the persons entitled or
as they may direct.
(4) A capitalised sum which was appropriated from profits available for distribution may be
applied in paying up new debentures of the company which are then allotted credited as fully
paid to the persons entitled or as they may direct.
(5) Subject to the articles the directors may—
(a) apply capitalised sums in accordance with paragraphs (3) and (4) partly in one way
and partly in another;
(b) make such arrangements as they think fit to deal with shares or debentures
becoming distributable in fractions under this article (including the issuing of fractional
certificates or the making of cash payments); and
(c) authorise any person to enter into an agreement with the company on behalf of all
the persons entitled which is binding on them in respect of the allotment of shares and
debentures to them under this article.

PART 4
DECISION-MAKING BY SHAREHOLDERS
ORGANISATION OF GENERAL MEETINGS
Attendance and speaking at general meetings
37.—(1) A person is able to exercise the right to speak at a general meeting when that
person is in a position to communicate to all those attending the meeting, during the
meeting, any information or opinions which that person has on the business of the meeting.
(2) A person is able to exercise the right to vote at a general meeting when—
(a) that person is able to vote, during the meeting, on resolutions put to the vote at the
meeting, and
(b) that person’s vote can be taken into account in determining whether or not such
resolutions are passed at the same time as the votes of all the other persons attending
the meeting.

Agenda Item 7

Page 82

(3) The directors may make whatever arrangements they consider appropriate to enable
those attending a general meeting to exercise their rights to speak or vote at it.
(4) In determining attendance at a general meeting, it is immaterial whether any two or more
members attending it are in the same place as each other.
(5) Two or more persons who are not in the same place as each other attend a general
meeting if their circumstances are such that if they have (or were to have) rights to speak
and vote at that meeting, they are (or would be) able to exercise them.
Quorum for general meetings
38. No business other than the appointment of the chairman of the meeting is to be
transacted at a general meeting if the persons attending it do not constitute a quorum.
Chairing general meetings
39.—(1) If the directors have appointed a chairman, the chairman shall chair general
meetings if present and willing to do so.
(2) If the directors have not appointed a chairman, or if the chairman is unwilling to chair the
meeting or is not present within ten minutes of the time at which a meeting was due to
start—
(a) the directors present, or
(b) (if no directors are present), the meeting,
must appoint a director or shareholder to chair the meeting, and the appointment of the
chairman of the meeting must be the first business of the meeting.
(3) The person chairing a meeting in accordance with this article is referred to as “the
chairman of the meeting”.
Attendance and speaking by directors and non-shareholders
40.—(1) Directors may attend and speak at general meetings, whether or not they are
shareholders.
(2) The chairman of the meeting may permit other persons who are not—
(a) shareholders of the company, or
(b) otherwise entitled to exercise the rights of shareholders in relation to general
meetings,
to attend and speak at a general meeting.
Adjournment
41.—(1) If the persons attending a general meeting within half an hour of the time at which
the meeting was due to start do not constitute a quorum, or if during a meeting a quorum
ceases to be present, the chairman of the meeting must adjourn it.
(2) The chairman of the meeting may adjourn a general meeting at which a quorum is
present if—
(a) the meeting consents to an adjournment, or
(b) it appears to the chairman of the meeting that an adjournment is necessary to
protect the safety of any person attending the meeting or ensure that the business of the
meeting is conducted in an orderly manner.
(3) The chairman of the meeting must adjourn a general meeting if directed to do so by the
meeting.
(4) When adjourning a general meeting, the chairman of the meeting must—
(a) either specify the time and place to which it is adjourned or state that it is to continue
at a time and place to be fixed by the directors, and

Page 83

Agenda Item 7

(b) have regard to any directions as to the time and place of any adjournment which
have been given by the meeting.
(5) If the continuation of an adjourned meeting is to take place more than 14 days after it
was adjourned, the company must give at least 7 clear days’ notice of it (that is, excluding
the day of the adjourned meeting and the day on which the notice is given)—
(a) to the same persons to whom notice of the company’s general meetings is required
to be given, and
(b) containing the same information which such notice is required to contain.
(6) No business may be transacted at an adjourned general meeting which could not
properly have been transacted at the meeting if the adjournment had not taken place.

VOTING AT GENERAL MEETINGS
Voting: general
42. A resolution put to the vote of a general meeting must be decided on a show of hands
unless a poll is duly demanded in accordance with the articles.

Errors and disputes
43.—(1) No objection may be raised to the qualification of any person voting at a general
meeting except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is
tendered, and every vote not disallowed at the meeting is valid.
(2) Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision is
final.
Poll votes
44.—(1) A poll on a resolution may be demanded—
(a) in advance of the general meeting where it is to be put to the vote, or
(b) at a general meeting, either before a show of hands on that resolution or immediately
after the result of a show of hands on that resolution is declared.
(2) A poll may be demanded by—
(a) the chairman of the meeting;
(b) the directors;
(c) two or more persons having the right to vote on the resolution; or
(d) a person or persons representing not less than one tenth of the total voting rights of
all the shareholders having the right to vote on the resolution.
(3) A demand for a poll may be withdrawn if—
(a) the poll has not yet been taken, and
(b) the chairman of the meeting consents to the withdrawal.
(4) Polls must be taken immediately and in such manner as the chairman of the meeting
directs.
Content of proxy notices
45.—(1) Proxies may only validly be appointed by a notice in writing (a “proxy notice”)
which—
(a) states the name and address of the shareholder appointing the proxy;
(b) identifies the person appointed to be that shareholder’s proxy and the general
meeting in relation to which that person is appointed;

Page 84

Agenda Item 7

(c) is signed by or on behalf of the shareholder appointing the proxy, or is authenticated
in such manner as the directors may determine; and
(d) is delivered to the company in accordance with the articles and any instructions
contained in the notice of the general meeting to which they relate.
(2) The company may require proxy notices to be delivered in a particular form, and may
specify different forms for different purposes.
(3) Proxy notices may specify how the proxy appointed under them is to vote (or that the
proxy is to abstain from voting) on one or more resolutions.
(4) Unless a proxy notice indicates otherwise, it must be treated as—
(a) allowing the person appointed under it as a proxy discretion as to how to vote on any
ancillary or procedural resolutions put to the meeting, and
(b) appointing that person as a proxy in relation to any adjournment of the general
meeting to which it relates as well as the meeting itself.
Delivery of proxy notices
46.—(1) A person who is entitled to attend, speak or vote (either on a show of hands or on a
poll) at a general meeting remains so entitled in respect of that meeting or any adjournment
of it, even though a valid proxy notice has been delivered to the company by or on behalf of
that person.
(2) An appointment under a proxy notice may be revoked by delivering to the company a
notice in writing given by or on behalf of the person by whom or on whose behalf the proxy
notice was given.
(3) A notice revoking a proxy appointment only takes effect if it is delivered before the start of
the meeting or adjourned meeting to which it relates.
(4) If a proxy notice is not executed by the person appointing the proxy, it must be
accompanied by written evidence of the authority of the person who executed it to execute it
on the appointor’s behalf.
Amendments to resolutions
47.—(1) An ordinary resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by
ordinary resolution if—
(a) notice of the proposed amendment is given to the company in writing by a person
entitled to vote at the general meeting at which it is to be proposed not less than 48
hours before the meeting is to take place (or such later time as the chairman of the
meeting may determine), and
(b) the proposed amendment does not, in the reasonable opinion of the chairman of the
meeting, materially alter the scope of the resolution.
(2) A special resolution to be proposed at a general meeting may be amended by ordinary
resolution, if—
(a) the chairman of the meeting proposes the amendment at the general meeting at
which the resolution is to be proposed, and
(b) the amendment does not go beyond what is necessary to correct a grammatical or
other non-substantive error in the resolution.
(3) If the chairman of the meeting, acting in good faith, wrongly decides that an amendment
to a resolution is out of order, the chairman’s error does not invalidate the vote on that
resolution.

PART 5
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS
Means of communication to be used

Page 85

Agenda Item 7

48.—(1) Subject to the articles, anything sent or supplied by or to the company under the
articles may be sent or supplied in any way in which the Companies Act 2006 provides for
documents or information which are authorised or required by any provision of that Act to be
sent or supplied by or to the company.
(2) Subject to the articles, any notice or document to be sent or supplied to a director in
connection with the taking of decisions by directors may also be sent or supplied by the
means by which that director has asked to be sent or supplied with such notices or
documents for the time being.
(3) A director may agree with the company that notices or documents sent to that director in
a particular way are to be deemed to have been received within a specified time of their
being sent, and for the specified time to be less than 48 hours.
Company seals
49.—(1) Any common seal may only be used by the authority of the directors.
(2) The directors may decide by what means and in what form any common seal is to be
used.
(3) Unless otherwise decided by the directors, if the company has a common seal and it is
affixed to a document, the document must also be signed by at least one authorised person
in the presence of a witness who attests the signature.
(4) For the purposes of this article, an authorised person is—
(a) any director of the company;
(b) the company secretary (if any); or
(c) any person authorised by the directors for the purpose of signing documents to
which the common seal is applied.
No right to inspect accounts and other records
50. Except as provided by law or authorised by the directors or an ordinary resolution of the
company, no person is entitled to inspect any of the company’s accounting or other records
or documents merely by virtue of being a shareholder.
Provision for employees on cessation of business
51. The directors may decide to make provision for the benefit of persons employed or
formerly employed by the company or any of its subsidiaries (other than a director or former
director or shadow director) in connection with the cessation or transfer to any person of the
whole or part of the undertaking of the company or that subsidiary.
DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE
Indemnity
52.—(1) Subject to paragraph (2), a relevant director of the company or an associated
company may be indemnified out of the company’s assets against—
(a) any liability incurred by that director in connection with any negligence, default,
breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the company or an associated company,
(b) any liability incurred by that director in connection with the activities of the company
or an associated company in its capacity as a trustee of an occupational pension
scheme (as defined in section 235(6) of the Companies Act 2006),
(c) any other liability incurred by that director as an officer of the company or an
associated company.

Agenda Item 7

Page 86

(2) This article does not authorise any indemnity which would be prohibited or rendered void
by any provision of the Companies Acts or by any other provision of law.
(3) In this article—
(a) companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries
of the same body corporate, and
(b) a “relevant director” means any director or former director of the company or an
associated company.
Insurance
53.—(1) The directors may decide to purchase and maintain insurance, at the expense of
the company, for the benefit of any relevant director in respect of any relevant loss.
(2) In this article—
(a) a “relevant director” means any director or former director of the company or an
associated company,
(b) a “relevant loss” means any loss or liability which has been or may be incurred by a
relevant director in connection with that director’s duties or powers in relation to the
company, any associated company or any pension fund or employees’ share scheme of
the company or associated company, and
(c) companies are associated if one is a subsidiary of the other or both are subsidiaries
of the same body corporate.

Page 87

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Admittance of LB of Wandsworth into the Shared Legal Service

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director of Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Simon Wales, Deputy Leader of the Council

Open/Exempt:

Open

Signed:

Date:

11 April 2016

Paul Evans, Head of South London Legal Partnership
●
●
●

An Open Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council

Date:

29 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

A report to agree the expansion of the South London Legal Partnership (SLLP), the shared legal
services hosted by Merton LBC, with the joining of Wandsworth LBC.

1.2

The report is provided in support of accepting the request from Wandsworth Borough Council
(WBC) to join the South London Legal Partnership (SLLP).

2.

Recommendations

2.1

To agree that Wandsworth Borough Council are admitted to join the South London Legal
Partnership.

3.

Background

3.1

The South London Legal Partnership has existed in its current form since October 2013 when
the Royal Borough of Kingston (RBK) and London Borough of Sutton (LBS) joined the shared
legal service established in 2011 between the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames
(LBRuT) and London Borough of Merton (LBM). Clause 20 of the collaboration agreement
between the four councils who form the shared legal service states that “No new council shall
be admitted to the Shared Service without the unanimous agreement of all then existing
members of the Shared Service.”

Agenda Item 8

Page 88

3.2

The SLLP has been providing legal services to the four partnership boroughs and associated
bodies since 2013 – acting as the in house legal department to the four councils and using a
mechanism to charge Councils for the legal resource used based on an hourly rate referred to
as “hard charging”.

3.3

The shared service has been judged as a success with two thirds of internal customers
surveyed reporting that service quality has improved. In additional the service has increased
resilience and delivers on going efficiencies in streamlining its processes and reducing external
legal costs. Staff surveyed agreed that the shared service has worked and has a clear
performance and customer led culture

3.4

Work on the possible expansion of the service has been framed and developed around some
important principles. These are as follows:

3.5

Customer satisfaction – the service should produce improved customer satisfaction with
appropriate levels of responsiveness and client care as well as being able to respond effectively
to individual client need.

3.6

Cost savings – the service should achieve reductions in spend on legal services for the same
outcomes, including through improved efficiency of administrative and management operations ,
and reductions in spend on external legal advice as the in-house function would have greater
resilience:

3.7

Risk minimisation – any merger needs to ensure the minimum disruption to the existing legal
services and thereby the client services so that effective legal advice and support continues
over the implementation period, and;

3.8

Culture and staff – the success of the service will aim to bring together staff from different
organisational cultures and give them an environment that will inspire staff to achieve
excellence. The shared organisation will be something they would be proud to work for with a
high level of morale, good education and personal and career development

3.9

As part of the discussions between LBRuT and Wandsworth Borough Council (WBC) around
their moves to create a Single Staffing Arrangement (SSA) a piece of work was carried out by
WBC to assess whether it was desirable for them to request the opportunity to join the SLLP.
This work has now concluded and in February WBC Cabinet agreed, subject to staff
consultation, a commitment to join SLLP.

3.10 This paper details the proposed plan for the implementation of the merger between the SLLP
and WBC legal team and presents it for approval by Sutton LBC

Page 89

Agenda Item 8

4.

Issues

4.1

WBC plan to transfer their legal budget by transferring their team into the SLLP. They propose
to transfer a budget of £1.4m. Likewise, they also propose to transfer a number of staff, the cost
of which will come to approximately £1.2m.This will give Wandsworth a saving of around 10% of
current non-management in house legal spend.
Deliverability

4.2

Analysis suggests that this expectation is deliverable. This is for the following reasons:

4.3

There are a number of efficiencies that WBC will receive due to their being a member of an
already successful legal partnership. These include:
● Adopting workflows and processes to reduce the time spent on key types of legal files
by SLLP staff – this includes use of the case management system which supports
these ways of working
● By delivering economies of scale between the five boroughs, there are pieces of work
that will either be deliverable for WBC at the same cost as SLLP currently do or at least
represent a substantial reduction on what WBC currently pay.
● The SLLP will deliver a new structure which should provide a flatter management
structure and thus reduce some costs
● By using comparative data between the councils the SLLP will be able to identify areas
where all Councils can reduce demand

4.4

In addition, WBC have two other factors external to the SLLP that should lead to lower legal
spend:
● WBC and LBRuT are forming a SSA and as such it seems likely that both authorities
should be able to reduce their individual demand on legal services
● WBC have an external legal contract, currently with Ashfords LLP, which could be
used to absorb capacity should WBC have more need for legal services than that
which they are paying for.

4.5

It should also be noted that the hard charging mechanism at the heart of the SLLP allows for the
board to manage demand between the different councils and if there is an authority making
higher demands of the service than the funds they have allocated this can easily be picked up.
Benefits for Sutton Council

4.6

The four existing Councils in the SLLP including Sutton will see added benefits from an
expanded service.

Agenda Item 8

●

●

●
●

Page 90

A merger will create one of the largest and comprehensive local government legal teams
in the country with over 110 staff with resilience, strength and depth across the range of
local government legal disciplines
Wandsworth has a strong team of lawyers with particular skills and experience in larger
commercial property transactions, licencing, project support, litigation, housing and
children’s and education.
A larger team will provide further opportunities for economies of scale and development I
non staff costs including a cutting edge case management system
A greater ability to introduce further improvements and cost saving to Sutton such as the
transfer of all Sutton childcare cases to digital technology and increased use of in house
advocates.

Project delivery
4.7

In November 2015, the SLLP governance board (which is made up of current partner
authorities) agreed in principle, that if WBC were to join the SLLP then it would make sense to
use this as an opportunity to review the structure of the service as a whole.

4.8

This would enable the service to set itself up for the future demands of the boroughs and not
just assimilate WBC. At the time the board agreed that there were a few core tenets of the
service that were not to change:
● Service continues to be based in one office with mobile working
● A single case management and office operating procedure
● The SLLP will operate a hard charging system.

4.9

In addition, the board agreed that the following issues were worth reviewing:
● Management team structure and capacity
● Legal specialisms and groupings e.g. property and planning
● Staff development and reward
● Effective clienting by the Councils
● A uniform, client led , performance culture
● Be sustainable
● Accommodate future savings with increased internal efficiencies and income
production
● Accommodate possible differential funding by Council’s in the future.

4.10 As such the project to implement this new five borough SLLP has been designed to capture this
element of service redesign as well as the technical work needed to add WBC to the service.
4.11 The project is based around a number of workstreams that will be staff led (including staff from
WBC and SLLP) and will help to design the outline of the new service – this will then be
followed by the formal staffing processes and the detailed implementation work.
4.12 This would mean the new service was ready to hit the ground running on the 1 April 2017.

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

Benefits to SLLP
4.13 The South London Legal Partnership has demonstrated considerable success over the past 3
years – delivering more efficient legal services to four London boroughs and leading the way in
a number of key areas of innovation, including the development of the hard charging model
case management system and the digitising of Children’s courts in South London.
4.14 All boroughs benefit from this and from the very competitive charge for legal services they
currently pay. Adding another large London borough will increase the capacity of the service
and allow it to continue to exploit its market position and service resilience to the benefit of all
five boroughs. Further, because of the hard charging, strong governance board, synergies with
LBRuT, external legal contract and the experience we have previously had bringing boroughs
into the partnership with similar needs the risk to the four existing partners is minimised.
5.

Options Considered

5.1

Expanding the SLLP will mean significant work in the short term but the proposal to use this as
an opportunity to bring about other improvements in the service supports the overall direction of
this paper – which is to recommend bringing WBC into the SLLP.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

The full set-up costs for this project have yet to be established but WBC will meet the costs for
IT, data migration etc. as well as any costs related to establishing a hot desking space in WBC
for SLLP staff to work in. All other costs should be minor and met in-kind.

6.2

Sutton originally targeted £360k of revenue savings from the Legal Service in 2012 with £200k
of this being delivered through the shared legal service. This proposal for WBC to join the
partnership will contribute to the final stages of that saving target and have the potential to
exceed it in the medium term. The current budget for the four borough service is £4.5m, which
excludes any external court or legal costs.
Legal

6.3

6.4

There are no significant legal implications further to those service improvements described in
the body of the report.
Risks
The key risks are a reduction in service quality and responsiveness through the proposed
implementation period, these will be mitigated by bringing in additional resources to manage the
transition and close monitoring of the service with regular engagement with customers.

Page 92

Agenda Item 8

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

None

n/a

Background documents
Report of the Strategic Director - Resources to Strategy and Resources Committee on 11
February 2013 - proposal for a shared legal service

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 23 March 2016

Finance

Yes

Gerald Almeroth

Legal

Yes

Paul Evans, SLLP

Consultation with other officers

Page 93

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Use of retained Right to Buy receipts

Report from:

Mary Morrissey, Strategic Director, Environment Housing and
Regeneration

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:

Councillor Ruth Dombey, Leader of the Council
Councillor Jayne McCoy, Chair, Housing, Economy and Business
Committee

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Gill Daw, Housing Enabling Officer, 020 8770 5696

Open/Exempt:

Open

●

Date: 11 April 2016

A Fair Council

Signed:

Date:

30 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

A report was presented to the Strategy and Resources Committee regarding new build council
housing – proposals for future development on 7th July 2014. Members authorised officers to
take all necessary steps to ensure that re-investable (net) Right-to-Buy receipts are applied to
new build council housing. This report updates Members on the issues surrounding the spend of
those receipts and makes recommendations for future spend.

2.

Recommendations

That the Strategy and Resources Committee:
2.1

Authorise the Strategic Director, Environment Housing and Regeneration, in consultation with
the Strategic Director of Resources to enter into grant agreements with Registered Providers or
other bodies to provide affordable housing in return for right to buy receipts.

2.2

Dispose of suitable Housing Revenue Account (HRA) sites to Registered Providers or other
bodies to deliver new affordable housing.

Agenda Item 9

Page 94

3.

Background

3.1

Sutton, in common with most stock owning authorities entered into an agreement with the
Department for Communities and Local Government to use net Right to Buy (RTB) receipts to
fund new social housing.

3.2

Under the terms of that agreement, RTB receipts have to be spent on new supply of affordable
housing within 3 years of their arising or have to be returned to the Exchequer with penalty
interest applied at 4% above base rate calculated from the day of receipt. The receipts can be
used to deliver social housing in the following ways: development costs associated with the
acquisition of dwellings to be used as social housing; the development costs associated with the
acquisition of land for the construction of dwellings to be used as social housing; and the
development costs for the construction of dwellings.

3.3

Since the scheme came into operation, there have been 560 applications received under the
new policy. Of these 243 (43%) have been withdrawn, cancelled or denied. The number of
completed RTB sales has reached 216 (35 in 2012/13, 65 in 2013/14, 75 in 2014/15 and 41 so
far this year) and there are also 101 live applications in the system at present.

3.4

As a result, £2.1m of RTB receipts has accrued in 2012-13, £2.8m in 2013-14 and £4.2m in
2014-15 and it is estimated that £4.9m will accrue in 15-16 and £3.4m in 16-17. There are clear
benefits to the Council to use the funding to deliver the policy of providing more social housing
in the borough rather than passing the funding to the Government.

3.5

Members agreed at the Strategy and Resources Committee 16th December 2013 that the first
£2m of net RTB receipts that accrued in 2012-13 should be applied to the redevelopment of the
Orlit properties to support the Lavender Housing Partnership. This report considers options for
spend of the remaining RTB receipts.

4.

Issues

4.1

In addition to the 3 year restriction, there are various other restrictions applied to the use of net
RTB receipts. They cannot be used for expenditure on dwellings which are social housing at
the time of the expenditure or which replace demolished dwellings; they cannot be used where
the scheme is funded wholly or in part by grant paid by the GLA and they cannot be used for
low cost home ownership schemes. The receipts can be given to another organisation to deliver
social rented housing but not to an organisation in which the Council holds a controlling interest.

4.2

Furthermore, the receipts used for council new build supply can only be used to fund up to 30%
of the cost of any scheme, with the Council required to fund the remaining 70% of the capital
cost of any scheme it develops.

4.3

The majority of rented social housing delivered in the borough to date has been funded through
GLA social housing grant but indications are that future funding rounds will be used for the
delivery of low cost home ownership options and there will be very limited funding for future
rented units.

Page 95

4.4

Agenda Item 9

A solution would be to have our own development programme to deliver new supply, and
following the reform of local authority financing in April 2012 which allowed local authorities to
invest in housing locally by borrowing against their own assets (the ring-fenced HRA), Members
approved a programme of new build housing across council-owned sites. However, the amount
of borrowing available in the HRA to deliver the programme is capped by the Treasury and
whilst the Council is able to deliver 93 units across 3 sites, it is unable to exceed the current
headroom and enter into further borrowing to continue with the programme of new council
supply beyond these sites. Furthermore, the impact of recent policy changes to sell off higher
value council homes and reduce social rents by 1% each year for the next 4 years will have an
impact on the housing revenue account budget. The RTB receipts therefore need to be used to
ensure that there is a future programme of Affordable Rented units in the borough.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

The first priority for spend of RTB receipts will be the new build Council house programme.
Alternative ways to implement new supply of rented housing using the RTB receipts as a grant
programme with a forward plan of spend are considered here.

5.2

Funding Registered Provider (housing association) schemes in the borough would provide
affordable housing for Sutton residents without the need for the Council to fund the remaining
70% of development costs. Officers are working with our Registered Providers to establish what
new rented supply can be delivered in return for nomination rights and will put appropriate
compliance checking and grant agreements in place. With the second tranche of funding to be
used, it is proposed to allocate a grant of £386K to Sutton Housing Society in return for
nomination rights to 8 properties on their Suffolk House scheme which is nearing completion.
Further funding could be allocated to appropriate sites as they come forward for development.

5.3

Some of the smaller underutilised garage sites or other HRA sites could be sold to Registered
Providers for the delivery of affordable housing, with the contribution of RTB grant to
supplement the development costs. A framework of interested Registered Providers and
restricted tender options will be explored.

5.4

A programme of modular housing is also being planned and RTB receipts could be used to fund
30% of the development costs.

5.5

A programme of purchase and repair of open market or ex- council properties is being
considered with suitable Registered Providers which will supplement the supply of rented
accommodation and could be used for permanent or temporary accommodation.

5.6

With the launch of the Local Plan and the Town Centre Master Plan, the feasibility of council
estate neighbourhood renewal needs to be considered and RTB receipts could complement a
delivery model to ensure affordable rented accommodation.

5.7

RTB receipts cannot be applied to the newly formed Sutton Living Limited development
company because it is wholly owned by the Council. A growing number of authorities are
establishing subsidiary companies to pursue housing development activities, using the general
power of competence in the Localism Act. For example, a new Community Benefit Society

Agenda Item 9

Page 96

company could be formed to enable RTB receipts to be granted to the company for new build
which will sit outside local authority ownership and control. This option is being explored further.
6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

During 2012/13 the Council entered an agreement with the DCLG which set out the
arrangement for the use of net right to buy receipts from the sale of council properties. Under
this agreement sums received must be applied within three years from their initial receipt and
can only be used to deliver additional social housing units. Any sums not used within the three
years must be returned to DCLG including penalty interest at 4% above the base rate.

6.2

Since 2012/13 the Council has received total RTB receipts of £11.9m. The years in which these
sums were received and the deadline for their application is shown in the table below. It should
be noted that in each year there are quarterly deadlines for the application of RTB receipts. This
is based on the quarter in which the sums were originally received. A full breakdown is shown in
Appendix A.

Year

Sum
Received
£m

Deadline for
applying RTB
receipts

Sums Paid /
Committed
£m

2012/13

2.070

2015/16

2.070

2013/14

2.780

2016/17

0.4

2014/15

4.254

2017/18

0

2015/16 (up to end of
Q3)

2.783

2018/19

0

Total

11.887

2.470

6.3 During 2015/16 a sum of £2m has been applied to the redevelopment of the Orlit properties as
part of the Lavender Housing Partnership and £70k to Sutton Housing Society. During 2016/17
it is proposed that a further sum of £386k will be allocated to Sutton Housing Society in return
for nomination rights for social housing units. This is the equivalent of the sum that needs to be
committed by the end of Q1 2016/17. Plans are also being developed for a programme of local
authority new build housing and temporary accommodation against which RTB receipts will be
used to part fund the programme. However the first expenditure coming through on these
schemes may not be until much later in 2016/17.
6.4

The Council must act quickly to develop firm expenditure plans against which RTB receipts can
be applied otherwise sums not utilised will need to be returned to Government. This report

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

requests permission for the Council to enter into necessary agreements to prevent this
happening.
7.

Legal

7.1 Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985 allows Councils to acquire land for housing purposes and to
dispose of land used for housing purposes to a person or organisation which intends to provide
housing accommodation on the land or provide facilities which serve a beneficial purpose in
connection with the requirements of persons for whom housing accommodation is provided.
7.2 The Council has powers under section 24(1) of the Local Government Act 1988 to provide any
person with financial assistance for the purposes of, or in connection with, the acquisition,
construction, conversion, rehabilitation, improvement, maintenance or management (whether by
that person or by another) of any property which is or is intended to be privately let as housing
accommodation.
7.3 Right to buy receipts must be applied in accordance with relevant legislation and guidance and
particularly the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting)(England) Regulations 2003
(as amended) and the terms of any agreement reached under section 11(6) of the Local
Government Act 2003 modifying the applicability of the regulations.

8.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Right to Buy Receipts Spend Deadlines

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance
Legal

Date: 30 March 2016

Comments Sought
Yes
Yes

Comments checked by
Lyndsey Gamble
Edward Broadhurst

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 99

Agenda Item 9

Appendix A: Right to Buy Receipts Spend Deadlines
RTB Receipts for Replacement Homes

Year

Quarter Quarter Quarter
1
2
3

Quarter
4
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

2015.16

1,626

784

373

0

2,783

2014.15

841

1,001

1,695

717

4,254

2013.14

387

442

476

1,475

2,780

2012.13

0

0

570

1,500

2,070

Deadline for Spend of RTB Receipts

Year

Quarter Quarter Quarter
1
2
3

Quarter
4
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

2015.16

0

0

570

1,500

2,070

2016.17

387

442

476

1,475

2,780

2017.18

841

1,001

1,695

717

4,254

2018.19

1,626

784

373

0

2,783

Capital Expenditure Needed to Avoid Repayment

Year

Quarter Quarter
1
2

Quarter
3

Quarter
4
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

2015.16

0

0

1,899

5,002

6,901

2016.17

1,288

1,474

1,587

4,916

9,265

2017.18

2,802

3,335

5,651

2,391

14,179

2018.19

5,419

2,613

1,246

0

9,278

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 101

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Strategy and Resources Committee

Report title:

Mayoralty Review

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Simon Wales, Deputy Leader of the Council

Corporate Plan Priorities:

Open/Exempt:
Signed:

Date:

11 April 2016

Alexa Coates, Head of Committee and Management Support
020 8770 5094
●
●
●

An Open Council
A Fair Council
A Smart Council

Open
Date:

29 March 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

The civic office is an important tradition in Sutton, this report summarises the findings of the
Mayoralty Review. The report and recommendations recognise the important role of the Mayor
and Deputy Mayor in Sutton, particularly in terms of celebrating the contribution of the volunteer
and charity organisations of the borough and in promoting the concepts of civic pride and
democratic participation. The report sets out some proposals such as establishing guidelines for
attending events and promoting the civic office for the future.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

That a civic handbook and formal induction programme for new Mayors and Deputy Mayors be
developed based on the principles identified in this report. This handbook will be reviewed
periodically.

2.2

That the Committee and Management Support Service will provide support to the Mayor in
promoting the civic office, including through twitter, facebook and a Mayoral blog on the
Council’s website.

2.3

That the Mayor is encouraged to focus their activities on attending events which benefit the
residents of the borough.

Agenda Item 10

Page 102

2.4

The Mayor and Council Officers will no longer host or attend international town twinning events,
and the town twinning grant will be removed from April 2016.

2.5

That the Council continues to support the Mayor’s attendance at the borough’s Remembrance
Sunday service hosted on a rotation basis at different churches around the borough.

2.6

That volunteer organisations in the borough are approached to help support flag raising events
in the borough.

2.7

That the Committee notes and supports the fact that the majority of the Mayor’s charity events
are supported through a Charity Committee and that the Council will provide an officer resource
to help organise up to three of the Mayor’s charity events per annum, with any other events
arranged solely by the Charity Committee.

2.8

That the Committee recognises the importance of civic tradition and the Mayor is encouraged to
attend significant civic events outside of the borough which may include the following: the Civic
Service with the Lord Mayor of Westminster, the London Mayors’ Association New Mayors’
Induction Day, The Queen’s Annual Garden Party and the Annual Whittington Walk, the New
Year’s Day Parade and the Lord Mayor’s Show.

2.9

That the Mayor is encouraged to prioritise other Mayoral charity events in the adjoining
boroughs and districts.

2.10 That a 1,000 hours per annum limit is set for use of hired vehicles by the Mayor and Deputy
Mayor combined to be monitored on a monthly basis.
2.11 The number of main civic receptions organised by the civic office on behalf of the Mayor will be
a maximum of 12 per annum.
2.12 That the Mayor will no longer invite Councillors to the Mayor’s parlour following Council
meetings and that alcohol will only be served at receptions on limited occasions.
2.13 Officers will explore whether any voluntary support to the civic office can be sought including
charity administration and promotion of the civic office.

2.14 That the Mayor’s additional expenses allowance be reduced to £12,000 per annum, £2,000 of
which will be available to the Deputy Mayor.
3.

Background

3.1

Support for the civic office (Mayor and Deputy Mayor) is provided by the Committee and
Management Support Team. As part of the support function review the Mayor’s secretary role
has been assigned to the Management Support Team Leader. The Mayor is also supported by
the Mace Bearer and Deputy Mace Bearer. Although the support function review identified the
level of support for the Mayor in terms of officers it did not review in detail the operational
workings or protocols for the office.

Page 103

Agenda Item 10

3.2

It has become evident that there are no set protocols in terms of the level of support that the
Mayor and Deputy Mayor can expect to receive. The operational workings of the civic office
have never been reviewed at Sutton. There was a business need to review the protocols of the
office and to develop more modern and efficient ways of working.

3.3

In the current financial year approximately £61,000 (not including staffing costs) has been
allocated to run the Mayor’s office. An approximation of how that is broken down is set out
below (these figures are based on budget allocation not spend):

● Transport - £37,000
● Hospitality - £5,000 (catering for civic events hosted by the Mayor, the average
cost of catering for a main civic reception is £200)
● Mayor’s Allowance - £14,700 (e.g. clothing, tickets for civic events in other
boroughs) (£2,000 of this allowance is assigned to the Deputy Mayor)
● Office expenses - £4,900 (clothing for the macebearer, printing, internal telephone
recharges, IT equipment and repair, insurance)
3.4

The level of staffing of the civic office has not formed part of this review. The Mayor and
Deputy Mayor receive direct support from the Macebearer part time at an approximate cost
of £12,000 per annum (not including on-costs) and Deputy Macebearer pro rata payment
approx £4,500 per annum (not including on-costs). The Mayor’s Secretary role is fulfilled by
a Senior Business Support Officer in the Management Support Team this role is not solely
dedicated to supporting the Mayor.

4.

Issues

Civic Tradition

4.1

The role of the Mayor is steeped in tradition and history, for example the office of Lord
Mayor of London was instituted in 1189. It was around this time that other major towns
followed such as Winchester and Exeter in appointing Mayors. The title of Mayor was
recognised in the Municipal Corporations Act 1835. When the London Boroughs were
created by virtue of London Government Act 1963, each one was granted borough status.
The Local Government Act 1972 established precedence, Schedule 2, Part 1, Section 2 (5)
“The Mayor of a London Borough shall have precedence in the Borough, but not so as to
prejudicially affect Her Majesty’s Royal Prerogative.” It is this precedence that establishes
the position of Mayor as ‘the first citizen’ and a ceremonial figurehead for the borough.

4.2

Sutton’s Constitution clearly sets out the expectations of the Mayor of Sutton in terms of
chairing Full Council - it is the Mayor’s responsibility to ensure that the business of the
Council can be carried out efficiently having regard for Councillors rights and the interests of
the community. The Constitution also recognises a role for the Mayor in terms of promoting
public involvement in the Council’s activities and attending civic events.

Page 104

Agenda Item 10

Consultation
4.3

As part of the review a short consultation exercise was conducted which consisted of: a
residents panel survey and two focus groups with officers involved in the civic office and a group
of Councillors. The residents panel consultation report is attached at Appendix A, the majority of
respondents agreed that having a Mayor within Sutton is beneficial to Sutton and the survey
results indicate that residents place high value in the civic office recognising the contributions
charity, community and the voluntary sector in the borough. Activities such as developing
international or town twinning relationships and maintaining close links with the armed forces
and veterans’ organisations were not priorities as identified by survey respondents. Whilst the
survey results indicate that the role of the Mayor is valued by Sutton residents it shows that
there is a lack of awareness about the role among residents. It is therefore proposed that
additional support is provided to the Mayor in promoting the role of the civic office, this would
take the form of well-maintained twitter and facebook accounts and support for a regular
Mayoral blog on the Council’s website.

4.4

Some of the comments submitted as part of the residents’ survey focused on a need to reduce
the cost of the civic office particularly in the context the Council needing to make significant
savings. However, this is not consistent with the overall finding that 41% of respondents felt
having a Mayor was beneficial to the borough. It is therefore proposed that more emphasis is
put on promoting the civic office and this is supported by some of the findings and comments
from the resident survey.

4.5

The two focus groups were held where one was with Council officers who have been involved in
the civic office and one with a group of Councillors from both political groups. The former Mayor
and Deputy Mayor (2014/15) were also consulted on the proposals outlined in this report. Whilst
a focus group report has not been produced the comments from the consultation have been
incorporated into the recommendations. Both groups strongly recognised the importance of the
role of the Mayor for Sutton, particularly in terms of recognising the role of the Mayor in
supporting and celebrating volunteering and community activities in the borough. Both groups
identified that in order to provide a consistent level of support to the Mayor certain protocols and
parameters needed to be set, particularly in terms of the level of events attended so that officers
were able to plan appropriately and so that the activities of the Mayor could be supported within
available resources. It is therefore proposed that a Mayoral handbook is developed to guide the
activities of the Mayor based on the principles identified in this report.

Town Twinning
4.6

The Council is twinned with the following five European Towns

●
●
●
●
●

Apeldoorn (the Netherlands)
Charlottenburg-Wilmersdorf (a district in Berlin, Germany)
Gagny (a suburb of Paris, France)
Gladsaxe (a suburb of Copenhagen, Denmark)
Minden (Germany)

Page 105

●

Agenda Item 10

In addition there is a friendship link with Tavernelle Val Di Pesa in Italy.

4.7

A grant is available to voluntary organisations to fund town twinning activities. The general rule
is that for groups visiting the twin towns they pay for the cost of travel and the town pick up the
hosting costs. So grants could be given towards travel costs if going abroad or hosting costs in
looking after visitors from the towns. The Mayors of the twin towns meet every other year over a
weekend to renew friendship links. Each town takes it in turn to host these meetings. In recent
years these meetings have had a theme and each town would be expected to contribute
towards the programme for the weekend. There is no allocated budget to support these
activities. Transport costs for the Mayor would come from the Mayoral allowance. When Sutton
hosts resources will need to be diverted from other areas to cover costs.

4.8

The survey and consultation results indicate that town twinning activities are rated as the least
important of civic activities. It is therefore proposed that the Council ceases to support town
twinning activities. The town twinning grant is not regularly spent, one of the regular recipients of
the grant is Sutton Town Twinning Association in 2014/15 and 2015/16 they were awarded
£700.

Remembrance Sunday
4.9

Each year the Mayor visits a different remembrance service in the Borough on the following
rotation: Carshalton, Wallington, Belmont, Sutton, Cheam, and Worcester Park. Support is
provided by the Council in the form of sending invitations to Councillors, MPs and voluntary
organisations and liaising with the relevant church to make arrangements on the day. It is
recommended that support for Remembrance Sunday services continues, but that no other
Remembrance events are supported by the Council other than the Mayor attending external
Remembrance events as appropriate.

Flag Raising Ceremonies
4.10 The Council has long supported flag raising ceremonies. There is no allocated budget to
support these events and they can be resource intensive from a secretariat perspective in
arranging diaries for senior officers and Councillors and co-ordinating attendance of groups
outside of the Council. These events also incur additional costs such as sound enhancement. In
the current financial context, it is suggested that voluntary organisations, such as the British
Legion, are approached to support these events with an expectation that the Mayor would
attend. If a suitable voluntary organisation is not able to take on support for these events then
the civic office will continue to organise such events.
Charity
4.11 It is normal practice for the Mayor to choose a local charity to support for the year. Previously
charity activities have been supported by a Charity Committee; it is proposed that this continues
with ad-hoc support required for up to three charity events per annum through the Mayor’s
secretary and macebearer, this includes invitations, publicity/promotion, attendance monitoring
and attendance. The Mayor’s secretary and Macebearer will not provide any support to the

Agenda Item 10

Page 106

Mayor’s charity events beyond that set out, further support would be expected to be source
through the Charity Committee and officers will explore seeking voluntary support to assist in
the administration of charity events.
4.12 Officers also provide support to the Mayor in attending other Council’s mayoral charity events,
this can be resource intensive in terms of secretariat support (managing invitations, claiming
back Mayor’s expenses for raffle prizes and tickets, arranging transport for the Mayor and cost
of transport). It is therefore proposed that the Mayor is encouraged to attend mayoral charity
events in adjoining boroughs and districts only.
Civic Tradition

4.13 The majority of significant events which link to the civic tradition are held outside of the borough.
The Councillor focus group in particular commented that these events provide important
networking opportunities particularly for new Mayors and gave them important opportunities to
speak to other London Mayors and gain support and advice. It is therefore proposed that the
Mayor be encouraged and supported to attend the following civic events outside of the borough
only: the Civic Service with the Lord Mayor of Westminster, the London Mayors’ Association
New Mayors’ Induction Day, The Queen’s Annual Garden Party and the Annual Whittington
Walk.
Engagements and events
4.14 The Mayor attends a wide variety of events within the borough, and on occasions outside of the
borough boundaries. The role of attending events is recognised in the constitution, which
specifies the aim of promoting public involvement in Council activities. In practice the Mayor’s
activities take a range of forms, the can be categorised into three broad categories

● events arranged by the civic office such as: civic service, civic receptions, Mayor’s
charity events
● events arranged by others (internal and external to the Council) within the borough
● events arranged by others outside of the borough

4.15 The level of support required in assisting the Mayor in attending these events varies. For
example in an event which the civic office organises usually involves arranging: venues,
refreshments, invitations. The main support required for external events is liaising with other
organisations to find out what they require from the Mayor (for example speeches, chains and
travel).
Transport
4.16 A significant resource for external events is transport. The current budget for civic transport is
£37,000 per annum. Without setting criteria for use of civic transport there is a high risk that this
budget overspends. Some options for better management of this budget or making savings
could be to set a limit to use of civic transport and therefore allowing the Mayor to choose the
focus of their activities – for example on local engagement or supporting volunteering. Setting a

Page 107

Agenda Item 10

20 hour per week limit would ensure the budget limit is met. It is proposed that the Mayor’s use
of hired vehicles is reviewed on a monthly basis with staff from the Committee and Management
Support Service and that the Mayor is encouraged to focus their activities on events which
include or provide benefit to local residents and limit their attendance at events outside of the
borough which do not benefit local residents or recognise civic engagement in the borough.

4.17 Officers have conducted a desktop review of civic transport options looking at: hired vehicles,
leasing a car either to be driven by the mace-bearer or hiring a driver or using an ad-hoc taxi
service (such as uber executive). It is recommended to continue with a contracted chauffeur
service for Mayoral transport at this time. Although leasing a vehicle appears to be a costeffective alternative driving duties could not be taken on by the Macebearer within the current 18
contracted hours per week. It is estimated 18 additional hours would be required to cover other
tasks taken on by the Macebearer, namely support at civic receptions and the Mayor’s charity.
This reduces the cost effectiveness of leasing a vehicle. In addition the advantages for using a
hired chauffeur services are felt to outweigh any small savings which could be achieved by
leasing a vehicle such the availability of multiple vehicles (if there is a clash in Mayor and
Deputy Mayor engagements), driver cover, incorporation of costs in contract (cleaning, petrol,
insurance etc).
Civic Receptions
4.18 It is common practice for the Mayor to host regular civic receptions in the Mayor’s parlour,
the officer and Councillor focus groups in particular recognised that these receptions were
an important and valued mechanism for recognising volunteers’ contributions in the
borough. It is to host receptions on a ward basis, with invitees selected at random from the
electoral register, this is seen as a way of promoting the role of the Mayor to residents who
might otherwise never have any contact with the Civic Office. The receptions do require
support in the form of arranging dates, invites, monitoring attendance, arranging catering,
and hosting with most receptions held outside of normal working hours.
4.19 There is a business need to set an expectation for the number of civic receptions to be
organised so that the level can be delivered within existing resources. It is therefore
proposed that the number of civic receptions will be set at a maximum of 12 per annum, in
order to reduce the spend against the civic hospitality budget it is also proposed that alcohol is
provided in only limited circumstances such as when hosting an evening reception to celebrate
contributions to the borough. It is proposed that the Mayor no longer invites Councillors to the
parlour following Council meetings, however that a reception will be held for the Mayor,
Councillors and guests following the Annual Council meeting. The decision as to whether to
serve alcohol at this will be left to the discretion of the incoming Mayor. The approximate cost of
a main civic reception is £200 setting a limit of 12 main receptions per annum would deliver a
saving of approximately £2,500.
5.

Options Considered

5.1

In broad terms the Council can continue to support the civic office in the way it has done for
many years, change the support offer to the Mayor as set out in the report or remove support for

Page 108

Agenda Item 10

the civic tradition entirely. The importance and value of the civic office and its contribution to a
sense of civic pride is recognised and therefore the report sets out some expectations which
allows the Mayor to receive an appropriate level of support whilst setting some parameters for
the Mayor’s activities. The proposals have been developed following a consultation exercise
and the recommendations reflect the views expressed through the residents’ survey and
Councillor and officer focus groups
6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

If the recommendations as set out in this report are agreed savings of £7,200 in 2016/17 can be
made. An £8,000 savings has already been made for 2016/17 against the town twinning grant
budget. The breakdown of savings are as follows:
● £8,000 – town twinning grant 2016/17 (already agreed through the budget
process)
● £2,000 – town twinning grant 2017/18
● £2,700 – Mayor’s additional allowance
● £2,500 – civic hospitality budget
Legal

6.2

The only specific requirements for local authorities in relation to the civic Mayor are set out in
the Local Government Act 1972; this states that all local authorities must appoint a chairman
and this appointment must be made from Councillors. The only authorities who can use the term
‘Mayor’ are those which have been granted a Royal Charter and given the status of borough or
city. Although there is a huge amount of tradition and history associated with the term Mayor
there are no specific rights or roles associated with the office and there is no requirement for
local authorities to support a civic office.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

The Mayor of Sutton Civic Function Consultation Report, Sutton Online
Residents Panel Survey, February 2015

Background documents
Mayoralty Review Documents

Page 109

Agenda Item 10

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 29 March 2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Sue Hogg

Legal

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

The Mayor of Sutton Civic Function Consultation
Sutton Online Residents Panel Survey
February 2015
Key Findings
There are low levels of awareness about the Mayor, however more residents agree that having
a mayor in Sutton is beneficial - compared to those who don’t. The role of the Mayor is
appreciated as a figurehead for the Council and community activity. From this survey there
are options for consideration on how the Council’s Civic Function might be developed. These
include:




Reducing spend on the Council’s Civic Function to reflect current times of austerity;
Modernising the Civic Function - With regards to activities, roles and duties, it is
suggested that the voluntary, community and charity functions should continue to be
supported, while ceremonial functions be reduced; and
Improving communication in contemporary formats to help increase knowledge and
awareness among residents as to the activities, roles and duties carried out by the
Mayor.

Purpose
Sutton Council is currently conducting a review of its Civic Function. The Civic Function is the
role of the Mayor and the support provided to the Mayor. This report forms part of the review.
In Sutton the role of the Mayor differs from that of an elected Mayor. Sutton’s Mayor presides
over Civic functions and social occasions as the ceremonial head of the Council; attending
and representing the Council at community, charitable and faith events.
This short survey aimed to assess levels of knowledge and awareness of the role of the Mayor.
The survey also aimed to get ideas and suggestions from local residents on how the Council’s
Civic Function might be developed.

Methodology
This online survey was circulated to Sutton’s Online Residents Panel using the Council’s
Online Opinion Suite. To enable wider participation another survey was published to enable
residents who were not registered on Sutton’s Online Residents Panel to take part. A press
release was issued to encourage participation. The survey took place between 9th January
and 1st February, 2015. A total of 300 residents took part in the survey.

Findings
41% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that having a Mayor within Sutton is
beneficial to the Borough and its residents (n = 299).

1

Page 112

Agenda Item 10

Appendix A

30%

30%

13%

11%

11%
4%

Strongly agree

Agree

Neither agree
or disagree

Agree
Disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

Don't know

41%
24%

While 41% agreed that Sutton should have a Mayor, 21% were not aware that Sutton has a
Mayor who is the ceremonial lead for the Council. 20% said that they knew who the current
Mayor of Sutton is.
20% said that they had seen or met the Mayor at a local event. From those who knew who the
Mayor was, this increased to 61%.




79% were aware that Sutton currently has a mayor who is the ceremonial lead for the
Council (n = 298)
20% knew who the current Mayor of Sutton is (n = 298)
During the past 12 months 20% have seen or met the Mayor at a local event (n = 297)

Media Coverage
During the past 12 months 62% had not seen or
heard any media coverage of the Mayor of Sutton?
(n = 299)
The low level of media coverage in relation to the
Mayor was thought to have an impact on
awareness. This was described in the open
comments where one respondent said:

“Perhaps if there were more advance publicity as to
when and where the mayor would be appearing in
public, more local people would turn out to see him and
support the council.”
Activities,
Roles & Duties

Don't
know/ not
sure
11%

Yes,
occasionally 24%

No 62%

Yes
frequently
4%

The Mayor carries out a variety of activities, roles and duties within the borough of Sutton.
Respondents were presented with a list of activities, roles and duties and asked to select 4 or
5 which they thought were the MOST important and the LEAST important.
Taking into consideration the number of respondents who selected an option as the most
important and deducting the number of respondents who selected that option as the least
important provides a net score for each activity, role and duty. The chart below ranks each of

2

Page 113

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

the activities, roles and duties from most important at the top to those ranked as least important
at the bottom.
Supports voluntary activities that benefit local
communities and people as a whole

141

Works proactively for the Mayor’s charities and
supporting many other charities

80

Attends and represents the Council at community
events

66

Promotes public involvement in the Council’s activities

64

Promotes and raises the profile of many Council
initiatives and projects of a charitable and voluntary…

43

Represents Sutton at civic events hosted by other
boroughs

43
35

Attends civic and ceremonial events

29

Chairs Full Council
Presides over Civic functions and social occasions as the
ceremonial head of the Council

24

Celebrates local success and recognising achievement
both internal and external to the Council
None of the above

19
-4

Hosts events, receiving and welcoming dignitaries and
visitors

-25

Maintains close links with the armed forces and
veterans’ organisations

-76

Maintains good relationships and working with faith
organisations, attending a variety of religious…

-77

Develops international or town twinning relationships

-136

Respondents selected varying numbers of activities, below are the four activities, roles and
duties ranked as the most and least important:

Most Important


Supports voluntary activities that benefit local communities and people as a whole
(Selected as most important by 52% of all respondents)

3

Agenda Item 10

Page 114
Appendix A



Works proactively for the Mayor’s charities and supporting many other charities
(Selected as most important by 38% of all respondents)



Attends and represents the Council at community events (Selected as most important
by 35% of all respondents)



Promotes public involvement in the Council’s activities (Selected as most important by
36% of all respondents)

Least Important


Develops international or town twinning relationships (Selected as least important by
56% of all respondents)



Maintains good relationships and working with faith organisations, attending a variety
of religious occasions and making visits to groups and places of worship (Selected as
least important by 42% of all respondents)



Maintains close links with the armed forces and veterans’ organisations (Selected as
least important by 37% of all respondents)



Hosts events, receiving and welcoming dignitaries and visitors (Selected as least
important by 34% of all respondents)

The full breakdown of activities, roles and duties by number of responses and the total
percentage of respondents is provided in appendix A at page 8 of this report.

Further Comments
Respondents were given the opportunity to provide any further comments regarding the Mayor
or the Civic Function in general. 119 comments were made. Similar proportions of comments
were in support of having a Mayor as comments made against having a Mayor. A consistent
theme throughout the comments was the suggestions on how the Council’s Civic Function
could be developed. Suggested developments fell into three prominent themes:
1. Reducing the costs spent on the Mayor and Civic Function (35 respondents);
2. Making changes to the role of the Mayor and Civic Function (22 respondents); and
3. Improving communications to help raise awareness about the Mayor and Civic
Function (20 respondents)
Examples of comments made are detailed below:

4

Page 115

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

1. Reducing the Costs
In the current economic climate there were a number of suggestions in relation to reducing
the Mayor and Civic Function budget. Some respondents felt that having a Mayor was “a waste
of money in the current climate.” Others suggested that the costs should be reduced.

“A ceremonial role
that is long past its
sell by date. Waste
of money.”

“The Mayor is an expensive figure head that we can well do
without. The position has no power & is politically motivated
& residents are paying, through council tax for something
that is superfluous!”

It was suggested that council funding could be better spent:

“If it costs money,
then why have a
Mayor. The Council
is hard strapped for
cash, by cutting the
Mayor, perhaps you
will have money for
something else.”

“The money
spent on Mayoral
type "duties"
would be better
spent on the
roads or towards
better policing of
the area”

“The council should be run as a
business. The ceremonial, mayoral
role is out-dated and an
unnecessary waste of money in
this day and age, particularly when
council's budgets are impossibly
overstretched, forcing cuts in
essential services.”

Others recognised the value of Sutton having a Mayor and Civic Function, but suggested that
the costs should be reduced or provided at no cost.

“I believe that the
office should be
retained as purely
ceremonial and
traditional but at
no cost
whatsoever to the
tax-payer”

“This is a ceremonial role. I presume
you are trying to get rid of it. Scrap
the Mayor's car and driver and keep
the costume and the chain. That way
a mayor can attend functions
without costing the borough any
money. .... Getting rid of the mayor
completely would be damaging to
the area's heritage....”

5

“Obviously in times
of cutbacks the
Mayoral role must
be applied
sensitively so as not
to incur
unnecessary costs
and resulting bad
publicity”

Agenda Item 10

Page 116
Appendix A

2. Making changes to the role
Suggested changes range from bringing the current function up to date to meet the needs of
communities to abolishing the Mayoral position altogether and replacing with other ‘community
ambassadors’ or Council representatives.

“Whilst not a great fan of the ceremonial stuff - it
does give a distinctive edge. It could be time though
to modernise the role of the "1st Citizen" whilst still
doing a number of current tasks”

“Time is fast moving on and
the idea of a Mayor opening a
fete holds little attraction”

There is support that the Mayor should take a proactive role in Council activity. However there
is a difference in opinion as to whether the Mayor should be elected or politically independent.

“I believe if a mayor is to exist they should be democratically elected and should have a
defined job role along the lines of promoting local business, supporting local community
efforts, acting as a liaison with other cities in UK and beyond, striving for better efficiencies in
terms of our facilities and services.”

“The mayor should exercise ceremonial
functions as a figurehead for the borough.
He or she should be impartial and not
undertake political functions or support
specific charities.”

“The Mayor is generally seen by residents as
"the Council" but the practice has been to
separate him/her from Council Initiatives - as
these are seen as being the responsibility of
the majority Party. Because many of such
initiatives (if not all) are clearly for the
benefit of the community, I don't see why
the Mayor should not be involved in their
promotion.”

“The mayor must not show any political
tendencies. In a similar way the employees of
the council must not show any political
tendencies!!”

It is suggested that local community ambassadors could take on the role of the Mayor, for
example representing young people representing the community or other council
representation.

“If we were looking at keeping
the mayor role - A 'young mayor'
for example may be more useful focussed on sharing the voice of
young people.”

3. Raise awareness

“The ceremonial role of Mayor is a luxury that in this
economic climate is unnecessary. The Leader and
Chief Executive of the council should be the faces of
the council and represent it when required and as
appropriate.”

6

Page 117

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

Awareness of Mayoral activities could be improved. 21% of respondents did not know that
Sutton had a Mayor and this was reflected in the comments made.

“Find it rather odd that I had no idea
what the mayor did”

“Don't think I even knew we had a
mayor...”

It was thought that if there was further clarity about the activities, duties and roles of the Mayor
then residents would better understand the role.

“The Mayor's role in
council is not clear
enough. He/she should
have a short list of
priorities for the year
that should be clearly
published and
publicised during the
year in office”

“It would be useful
to know what the
mayor does and also
to be informed
when he was attend
something so that
people can attend if
they wish”

“Perhaps the role of the
Mayor is not promoted
enough - especially in
influencing improvements
within the community.
Otherwise it is just a
ceremonial position, which
in the 21st century is no
longer essential.”

Respondents were keen to know more about the Mayor. Some said that as they did not receive
a local newspaper they were not kept up to date with local activities. Others suggested that
the local newspaper should not be relied upon and that the activities of the Mayor should be
communicated in other, more contemporary formats.

“Since we no longer get local newspapers means that we are not made aware of what
our mayor is doing.”

“Since local papers are less used these days the Mayor should appear more on the
internet on some regular Borough Web Page exclusive to Mayoral activities promoting
the Borough, promoting Voluntary bodies in the Borough and the people who
run/create them.”

7

Agenda Item 10

Page 118
Appendix A

Appendix A
The Mayor carries out a variety of activities, roles and duties within the borough of
Sutton. From the list below, which 4 or 5 do you think are the MOST important? (Please
select 4 or 5 options)
Activities, Roles & Duties

Number of
Responses
156

% of
Respondents
52%

115

38%

113

38%

Promotes and raises the profile of many Council initiatives
and projects of a charitable and voluntary nature
Chairs Full Council

113

38%

110

37%

Promotes public involvement in the Council’s activities

109

36%

Attends and represents the Council at community events

105

35%

Presides over Civic functions and social occasions as the
ceremonial head of the Council
Attends civic and ceremonial events

97

32%

91

30%

Celebrates local success and recognising achievement both
internal and external to the Council
Hosts events, receiving and welcoming dignitaries and
visitors
Maintains good relationships and working with faith
organisations, attending a variety of religious occasions and
making visits to groups and places of worship
Maintains close links with the armed forces and veterans’
organisations
Develops international or town twinning relationships

79

26%

78

26%

48

16%

34

11%

31

10%

None of the above

27

9%

Supports voluntary activities that benefit local communities
and people as a whole
Works proactively for the Mayor’s charities and supporting
many other charities
Represents Sutton at civic events hosted by other boroughs

8

Page 119

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

The Mayor carries out a variety of activities, roles and duties within the borough of
Sutton. From the list below, which 4 or 5 do you think are the LEAST important? (Please
select 4 or 5 options)
Activities, Roles & Duties
Develops international or town twinning relationships

Number of
Responses
167

% of
Respondents
56%

Maintains good relationships and working with faith
organisations, attending a variety of religious occasions and
making visits to groups and places of worship
Maintains close links with the armed forces and veterans’
organisations
Hosts events, receiving and welcoming dignitaries and
visitors

125

42%

110

37%

103

34%

Chairs Full Council

81

27%

Presides over Civic functions and social occasions as the
ceremonial head of the Council
Represents Sutton at civic events hosted by other boroughs

73

24%

70

23%

Celebrates local success and recognising achievement both
internal and external to the Council
Attends civic and ceremonial events

60

20%

56

19%

Promotes public involvement in the Council’s activities

45

15%

Attends and represents the Council at community events

39

13%

Works proactively for the Mayor’s charities and supporting
many other charities
None of the above

35

12%

31

10%

Promotes and raises the profile of many Council initiatives
and projects of a charitable and voluntary nature
Supports voluntary activities that benefit local communities
and people as a whole

29

10%

15

5%

9

Page 120

Agenda Item 10

Appendix A

Appendix B
Demographic Information about Respondents
Demographic information in available in relation to 86% of the overall sample (n=259). In some
cases not all demographic information has been provided. The number of respondents for
each demographic group has been provided.
From the demographic information we have:
 Slightly more males (52.1%) than females (47.9%) took part
 Respondents aged 65 – 74 years old (23.0%) and aged 35 – 44 years old (22.3%)
account for the largest proportion of responses
 13% of respondents have their day to day activities limited
 95.7% are White or White British
 38.6% work full time, while 26.8% are retired
 52.4% of respondents owned their home outright (including leasehold)
Gender and Age

75+

-4

65 – 74

-28

60 – 64

30

-11

55 – 59

19

-14

45 – 54
35 – 44

8

24

-26

20

-31

25 – 34

26
-8

6

Female

Male

Gender (n=257), Age (n=256)

Ethnicity

White or White British
Asian or Asian British
Black or Black British
Other Ethnic Group
Any other Mixed/ multiple ethnic background
Ethnicity (n=254)

10

Number of
% of Known
Respondents Respondents
243
95.7%
6
2.4%
2
0.8%
2
0.8%
1
0.4%

Page 121

Agenda Item 10
Appendix A

Day to Day Activities Limited

Yes:
13%

No:
87%

Day to Day Activities Limited (n=241)

Employment Status

Working - Full-time (30+ hrs/wk)
Retired
Working - Part-time (8-29 hrs/wk)
Self-employed
Not working - retired
Voluntary work
Other
Permanently sick/ disabled
Full-time carer
Housewife/ husband
Not working - looking after house/children
Unemployed but not registered
Not Answered
Registered unemployed (Job seeker's allowance)
Unemployed

Number of
% of Known
Respondents Respondents
100
38.6%
74
28.6%
34
13.1%
16
6.2%
11
4.2%
6
2.3%
4
1.5%
3
1.2%
2
0.8%
2
0.8%
2
0.8%
2
0.8%
1
0.4%
1
0.4%
1
0.4%

Employment Status (n=259)

Tenure

Owned outright (including leasehold)
Buying on a mortgage
Rented from private landlord
Rented from Council/ Sutton Housing Partnership
Rented from housing association
Other
Tenure (n=254)

11

Number of
% of Known
Respondents Respondents
133
52.4%
93
36.6%
12
4.7%
7
2.8%
5
2.0%
4
1.6%

This page is intentionally left blank

